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Income From Operations ($ in millions)
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Growth in income from operations reflects improved
profitability, including effective cost controls.
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Over the past two years, Microtek Medical’s
Shareholders’ Equity has steadily improved.
A strong current ratio demonstrates sound
working capital management.

IBack row left to right, Michael Glasscock, M.D., ken Davis, M.D., Marc Safni
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

- Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
',;%3
< Net revenues $134,458 $126,581 $98,664
Gross profit $52,526 $49,564 $39,216
" Gross margin ;,/\‘* . 39.1% 39.2% 39.7%
T Operating expenses \“A",/':/ \%i $42,297 $41,340 $32,641
N i,
Operating expense margin G TP E Y "%j;b 31.5% 32.7% 33.1%
& ,
Income from operations ,{:/ . . Q\\ $10,090 $8,439 $7.557
SO Loy el p)
Net income Sy T s $14,504 §9,921  $16,023
N P
\f.?\ LS
Net income per share - ’Qg\\' S¢ f,'/
| N
Basic N $0.33 $0.23 $0.38
Diluted $0.33 $0.22 $0.37
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA
(in thousands)
As of December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Cash and cash equivalents $14,765 $8,964 $9,462
Working capital $59,154 $48,819 $52,520
Total assets $140,758 $131,069 $118,299
Long-term debt $1,669 $5,479 $8,528
Shareholders’ equity $124,066 $108,643 $96,544
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Chairman, Présid

| am pleased to bring you Microtek
Medical’s 2005 Annual Report and
invite you to join our journey on
The Path To Growth.

Before we look at the exciting path
ahead, it is important to reflect on our
2005 accomplishments. Amid a number
of challenges, we maintained a strong
focus on executing our business plan
domestically and abroad. Our 2005
total revenues demonstrated a year-
over-year increase of 6%. Healthcare
revenues grew at an even stronger 9%.
For the full year, our operating expense
margin improved to 31.5%, and our
operating income increased by $1.7
million or 20%. Excluding disposition
gains and losses, our operating income
for 2005 improved by $2 million or
24%. 2005 net income totaled $14.5
million, or 33 cents per diluted share,
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Letter From The Chairman

including $5.3 million in non-cash
deferred income tax benefits.

Capitalizing on these accomplishments,
we are confident our strategy of organic
product line development, coupled with
strategic acquisitions, remains the best
way to grow our business. A renewed
emphasis on top-quality research and
development and a robust slate of new
product launches, together with stellar
partner and customer alliances, should
make 2006 another record year of
growth for Microtek Medical in top line
results and bottom line profitability.

We will continue to rely on our

strong balance sheet fundamentals:
an impressive cash position, minimal
debt, a current ratio reflective of our
sound working capital management,
and our greatest asset, our employees.

Our daily efforts are focused on two
primary objectives: propel Microtek
Medical forward on this exciting path
of growth and enhance our long-term
shareholder value.

The foundation of Microtek Medical’s
healthcare revenues continues to be
our strong and profitable domestic
branded business which has consider-
able value and is a platform for emerg-
ing healthcare market penetration. Qur
core business has a proven ability to
generate significant, sustainable earn-
ings and cash flows. Favorable industry
and demographic trends will further
enhance our market leading position for
the foreseeable future.

Our growth strategy for 2006 also
involves investment in other platforms

for expansion. The free cash flow gener-
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) capitahze on new contract manufactur-

ing opportunities. The key to success in
our Criginal Equipment Manufacturer
(OEM) business is our relationshibs
with some of the world’s largest and
most technologically advanced medi-
cal device manufacturers. To generate
the level of OEM growth expected for
2006, we will focus on strengthening
quality systems, improving service levels
and enhancing customer relationships.
Additionally, we have launched a proac-
tive sales and marketing campaign to
promote our OEM capabilities around
the globe.

We further believe that 2006 will
represent another solid year of interna-
tional growth. To increase our European
presence and gain additional market
recognition, we will expand our direct
sales force and complete strategic acqui-
sitions. We are also exploring other ways
to better compete in Europe, so that we
grow the top-line as well as profitability.

Qur 2006 manufacturing plan capitalizes
on the successful completion of sev-
eral key 2005 initiatives and continues
our policy of sound cost management

which has helped mitigate cost pres-
sures and has maintained our gross
margin performance. We have the
ability to maintain our low cost structure
and manage the lifecycle of our prod-
uct costs through process and facility
rationalization and additional transfer

of production offshore. Because of our
ready access to sourcing and sterilization
capabilities in China, expansion of our
China production is not only a key cost
reduction initiative, but is also the next
natural step in executing our worldwide
manufacturing plan.

in summary, during 2006, we expect to
grow revenues, maintain our gross mar-
gin, improve our operating margins and
enhance our overall profitability.
Additionally, we will use the strength

of Microtek Medical's reputation,
domestically and abroad, to expand our
presence into new growth areas.

We also hope to complement our
organic growth potential with strategic
acquisition opportunities. We have the
free cash flow, strong balance sheet
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Executive Management Committee:

and right platform to accomplish
these goals.

My sincerest gratitude goes to all our
erployees for their performance this
year. | am proud to work with this
exceptional group of individuals, and |
respect the integrity, loyalty and dedica-
tion that are exhibited in all they do.
These qualities are the backbone of all
we can and will accomplish in 2006
and beyond.

To our loyal and committed share-
holders, customers and partners, we
appreciate your continued support of
Microtek Medical. We accept your
challenges for continued success,

and we work diligently every single day
to continue to earn your respect.

We look forward to journeying

The Path To Growth with you.

Best personal regards,

S

Dan R. Lee

Back row left to right, Mike Mabry - C1O, Jerry Wilson - CFO, Mark Alvarez - COO
Front row left to right, Robin Humble -VP, international Operations, Laura Nelson- VP Corporate
Finance & Treasury, Rick Taylor-VP Innovative Services




Microtek Medical Branded

A core of profitability for the past 20 years, Microtek
Medical's branded product sales to hospitals and end-users
in the United States comprised nearly 50% of total company
revenues in 2005.

With new talent added to the sales force during the year,
management and field representatives implemented a more
focused, analytical approach to increasing business. Micro
and macro views of sales activities and forecasts were created
for every territory and for each branded product.

The realignment of Microtek Medical’s sales and marketing
business units has not only improved communication, but
has also allowed for implementation of a more goal-oriented,
consultative sales process. Focused on understanding and
satisfying customer needs first, this sales approach has
already proven successful.

Microtek Medical’s branded products have a well-earned
reputation for solving problems in clinical settings with a
consistent measure of innovation, physician preference and
efficiency. This unusual combination of economy and perfor-
mance delivers value for every customer and naturally lends
itself to the new sales philosophy.

Branded products are offered for procedural specialty
areas including: Orthopedics, Neurology, Diagnostic Imaging,
Interventional Radiology, Ophthalmic, Urology/OB-GYN and
Emergency Medical Services. Microtek Medical's CleanOp®
and Venodyne® product lines continue to offer promise for
2006 as well.

Throughout the year, in every area of branded products,
Microtek Medical continued to deliver the kind of problem
solving that creates sales. At Microtek Medical, we are focused
on meeting the needs of our customers with consultative,
innovative solutions, not just on selling branded products.

Innovative New OrthoPrep™ Systems




Microtek Medical International

Growth in global markets continued to increase at an
impressive rate during 2005. Microtek Medical’s expansion
into international markets continues to reap rewards, both
from organic growth of existing product lines and through
strategic acquisitions. The Company’s acquisition of the IMP
businesses in May 2004 continues to drive plans to develop
a branded presence in key strategic markets and leverage
strength with OEM customers.

State-of-the-art Dip Molding Total Range of Probe Covers

Another example of our international expansion strategy is

our recently announced acquisition of Samco. With manufac-

turing and distribution capabilities in Malta and near Munich, Net Sales (5 in millions)

Germany, Samco offers a variety of surgical products which $1400 1 $126.6 _ S14s
complement Microtek’s existing product lines. Additionally, $120.0 1 f 6.2%
e L . $98.7 ’—Rf/\ v
Samco’s distribution capabilities immediately strengthen our $100.0 2
competitive position and expand our presence in Germany. $80.0 1
$60.0 A

We are actively pursuing additional European acquisition

$40.0 4
opportunities that, when completed, will further increase
. . $20.0
Microtek Medical’s global reach.
$0.0 . :
2003 2004 2005
Today, Microtek Medical has facilities not only throughout the 2003 2004 2005
United States, but also in Latin America, Europe and, through
strategic relationships, China. Our global facilities accom- Net sales ($ in millions)
modate everything from manufacture of a wide spectrum of $1400 1 % [ 3
\

products to world-class customer support. Under a growing $1200 1 . . \ D s \
and experienced international team, our global sales efforts $100.0 1 v | ! ‘

13% ! !
continue to expand. $80.0 1 i 5% | 2%

$60.0 | 2% Lo

One expertise that has provided high credibility is Microtek $40.0 » coo -
Medical's demonstrated ability to manage its regulatory pro- $20.0 1
cesses. Working effectively with the FDA and other domestic $0.0 2003 " oo 008
and international regu‘atory bodies and meeting the strin- nBranded cInnevative Services Olnternational : Other

gent demands of many of our worldwide partners has earned

Microtek Medical an international reputation for manufactur-

- 0,
ing excellence. Our international customers fully appreciate In 2005, total revenues grew 6.2% over 2004.

that Microtek Medical is the partner they need to help with Healthcare revenues, the Company’s primary
their own regulatory processes. focus, grew 9% in 2005.

The single largest factor in Microtek Medical’s success Microtek Medical’s international business has
internationally has been the effective establishment of a true been a strong source of growth since 2003, in

measure of trust. Customers around the globe today know terms of total revenue dollars and percentage of

Microtek Medical as a reliable source for products, as well as ,
P the Company’s total revenues.

a permanent presence in their part of the world.




Innovative Services

Microtek Medical’s Innovative Services Division is focused on
developing new solutions to challenges in the clinical envi-
ronment for patients and healthcare professionals around the
world. A cornerstone of the Company's financial stability and
growth, comprising 25% of the Company’s total revenues,
Innovative Services works closely with a wide range of Origi-
nal Equipment Manufacturers (OEM’s) and thought leaders
from virtually every technology and industrial sector.

The Innovative Services Division is focused on bringing to
market new healthcare solutions essential to growth in
today’s marketplace. With nine facilities around the world,
Microtek Medical offers a comprehensive array of manufac-
turing and related support services. We are committed to

continuous improvement, advanced design, innovation and

Turnkey solutions for every OEM need.

ongoing service support. These core values distinguish

Microtek Medical’s Innovative Services Division as a global
leader in the design, manufacture and marketing of a
comprehensive range of high quality products for infection
control, fluid control and the enhancement of safety.

Cash Ratio (%) LT Debt / Capital (%)
With expertise in areas such as mass customization, Microtek R T

1M7.4% T 18.0%
120% 1 -~

Medical focuses on specialized OEM needs and has enjoyed S L sow

4 : : - % T jsition of (MP businesses from Cardinal s o

positive growth during the past year. The ongoing delivery AR PR e e I T
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gains in the year ahead. 80% = ) T L80%
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40% 1 6.5% 8.4% 7.1% 6.0%
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Strong operating cash flow in 2005 enabled
a significant reduction in long-term debt
and an increase in cash and cash equivalents.
At December 2005, the Company had
minimal long-term debt as a percent of total
capital and an impressive cash ratio.

Mass customization for global OEM clients.




SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2005
Commission File Number: 0-24866

MICROTEK MEDICAL HOLDINGS, INC.

(Exact Name of registrant as specified in its charter)

GEORGIA 58-1746149

(State or other Jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (L.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
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None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Name of each exchange on which registered:
Common stock, $.001 par value per share The Nasdaq Stock Market
Stock purchase rights The Nasdaq Stock Market

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act.

Yes [] No X

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Exchange Act.

Yes [] No X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant
was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes[X] No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part IIT of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer [ Accelerated filer [X] Non-accelerated filer []
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes [ ] No [X]

The aggregate market value of voting and non-voting common equity held by nonaffiliates of the registrant based on
the sale price at which the common equity was last sold as reported on The Nasdaq Stock Market as of June 30,
2005, was approximately $140.4 million. For purposes of this computation, all officers, directors and 5% beneficial
owners of the registrant are deemed to be affiliates. Such determination should not be deemed an admission that
such officers, directors or 5% beneficial owners are, in fact, affiliates of the registrant.

At March 10, 2000, there were outstanding 43,692,981 shares of the registrant's common stock, $.001 par value per
share.

Documents incorporated by reference: Portions of the Registrant's proxy statement relating to the 2006 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders are incorporated into Part III of this Form 10-K.




Note: The discussions in this Form 10-K contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties.
The actual results of Microtek Medical Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") could differ significantly
[from those set forth herein. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to,
those discussed in "Business", "Risk Factors", and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations" as well as those discussed elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Statements contained in this
Form 10-K that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements that are subject to the safe harbor created by
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. A number of important factors could cause the Company's
actual results for 2006 and beyond to differ materially from those expressed or implied in any forward-looking
statements made by, or on behalf of, the Company. These factors include, without limiration, those listed in "Risk
Factors" in this Form 10-K.

PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Microtek Medical Holdings, Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated in Georgia in 1987 and currently has
two primary operating units. The Company conducts substantially all of its operations through Microtek Medical,
Inc. ("Microtek"), a Company subsidiary. OREX Technologies International ("OTI"), a division of the Company,
focuses on the commercialization of the Company's OREX degradable products and disposal technologies to the
nuclear power generating industry.

Microtek, a market leading healthcare company within its area of focus, manufactures and sells infection
control products, fluid control products, safety products and other products to healthcare professionals for use in
environments such as operating rooms and ambulatory surgical centers. Microtek's core product line consists of a
large variety of disposable equipment drapes and specialty patient drapes. Microtek has established a broad product
selling system through multiple channels including distributors, directly through its own sales force, original
equipment manufacturers, and private label customers. Additionally, Microtek has a strong presence as a branded
component supplier to custom procedure tray companies. As a result of an acquisition from International Medical
Products, B.V. and affiliates which was concluded on May 28, 2004, Microtek acquired certain businesses engaged
in the development, manufacture, marketing and distribution in Europe of high quality dip-molded medical devices
(primarily ultrasound probe covers), other equipment covers, cardiac thoracic drain systems, gynecological devices
and wound care products.

OTI seeks to develop and commercialize contamination control materials and products coupled with
engineered systems for the treatment and disposal of those materials and products using proprietary technology and
know-how. While OTI has in the past sought to develop and commercialize such products for healthcare
applications, OTI has more recently focused primarily on seeking to commercialize its OREX degradable products
and technology for disposing of such products in the nuclear power generating industry. During 2004, the Company
licensed its OREX degradable products and disposal technologies for nuclear and other specified applications to a
third party. Subsequent to this transaction, the Company no longer sells OREX products to the nuclear power
generating industry.

The Company's internet address is www. microtekmed.com. The Company makes available free of charge,
through its web site, its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as practicable after the Company electronically files such materials with
or furnishes such materials to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. Information contained on the web site is
not part of this report.

Business Strategy
The Company provides healthcare professionals with innovative product solutions that encompass a high

level of patient care and prevention of cross infection. The Company intends to maintain this business by
continually improving its existing capabilities and simultaneously developing and acquiring new business




opportunities while maintaining its customer focus and providing the highest levels of customer support. The
Company seeks to increase sales and earnings from its infection control business by completing strategic
acquisitions, enhancing marketing and distribution efforts both domestically and internationally, introducing new
products, increasing direct sales representation, employing tele-sales agents for added sales coverage, and
capitalizing on low-cost manufacturing opportunities in the Dominican Republic and China.

Since 2000, the Company has employed an active acquisitions strategy and has completed the following
transactions:

s In October 2000, Microtek acquired the urology drape product line of Lingeman Medical Products, Inc., a
former customer of Microtek;

o In the first quarter of 2001, Microtek acquired the post-surgical clean-up product line and the patient and
medical equipment drape product lines of Deka Medical, Inc., a manufacturer and marketer of specialty
equipment and patient drapes for use in various surgical procedures to prevent infection;

e In February 2001, the Company acquired the assets of MICROBasix LLC (“MICROBasix”) after
developing a cooperative alliance relationship with MICROBasix in 2000 for the purpose of sharing
technologies, products and services that provide significant volume reduction of low level radioactive
waste for the nuclear industry;

» In November 2002, Microtek acquired the surgical drape product line of Gyrus ENT, LLC;

¢ In November 2003, Microtek acquired substantially all of the assets of Plasco, Inc., a manufacturer and
marketer of multi-line disposable medical device products;

e In March 2004, Microtek acquired substantially all of the assets of Ortho/Plast, Inc., a marketer of a small
line of orthopedic products;

¢ In May 2004, Microtek acquired certain assets related to certain businesses of International Medical
Products, B.V. and affiliates (collectively, “IMP”) engaged in the development, manufacture, marketing
and distribution in Europe of high quality dip-moided medical devices (priraarily ultrasound probe covers),
other equipment covers, cardiac thoracic drain systems, gynecological devices and wound care products.

At the same time that the Company has pursued this acquisition strategy, the Company has generated
internal growth by making product improvements and product line extensions to its existing product families. The
Company has also made significant investments in all parts of its business, particularly in its sales and marketing
infrastructure to increase market awareness of the Company’s branded product lines and to further position the
Company as a market leader in the customized infection control market. The Company has also focused on efforts
to expand and develop its relationships with its customers and other end users which include certain of the leading
original equipment manufacturers (“OEM’s™) and supply service companies in the world. Historically, the majority
of the Company’s operations have been conducted domestically in the United States and North America. In 2003,
approximately 86.6 percent of the Company’s consolidated net revenues were considered domestic while the
remaining 13 .4 percent were generated internationally. In 2004 and 2005, approximately 18.7 percent and 24 4
percent, respectively, of the Company’s consolidated net revenues were generated internationally.

The Company’s objective is to increase shareholder value by efficiently deploying its capital and
management resources to grow its business, reduce its operating costs and build sustainable competitive positions
and to complete acquisitions that generate attractive cash returns.




Products and Markets
Infection Control Products

Consistent with its niche market strategy, Microtek is actively engaged in the development of new products
and the refinement of its existing products to respond to the needs of its customers and the changing technology of
the healthcare industry. Many of the Company's product innovations have been generated from requests by the
Company's customers, equipment companies and healthcare professionals for products to be custom designed to
address specified problems in the operating room and ambulatory surgical center environments. The Company also
monitors trends in the healthcare industry and performs market research in order to evaluate new product ideas. No
assurance can be given that any new product will be successfully developed or that any newly developed product
will achieve or sustain market acceptance.

Microtek's products consist primarily of the following:

Equipment Drapes. Microtek's line of equipment drapes consists of more than 1,500 specially designed
drapes for use in draping operating room equipment during surgical procedures. This equipment includes, for
example, microscopes, ultrasound probes, endoscopic video cameras, x-ray cassettes, imaging equipment, lasers and
handles attached to surgical lights. In addition to reducing the risk of cross-infection, these products increase
operating room efficiency by reducing the need to sterilize equipment between procedures. These disposable sterile
products are generally made from plastic film containing features designed for the operating room environment,
such as low glare and anti-static features.

Patient Drapes. Microtek manufactures and sells both non-woven and plastic patient drapes. Microtek's
non-woven patient drapes are limited to specialty patient drapes with various enhancements, such as fluid collection
pouches, incise and unique procedure-specific designs. For example, angiography drapes are specially designed
patient drapes used in angiography procedures.

CleanOp Products. Microtek’s CleanOp system consists of an entire line of products and supplies
designed to efficiently and effectively clean a procedural room and prepare it for subsequent use. These systems are
distributed in non-sterile packages which combine all the necessary clean-up products into a convenient and easy to
use pack. Microtek’s CleanOp products have been a significant source of the increase in the Company’s hospital
branded revenues since 2001 due to increased market penetration and the absence of a significant competitor
coupled with the Company’s focused selling and marketing activities. As the market for these products matures and
as the Company continues to increase market penetration of these products, the Company expects competitors to
more successfully develop, market and sell competitive products, thereby decreasing the rate at which the
Company’s sales of these products increase.

Safety Products and Other Products. Microtek manufactures and sells a leading line of encapsulation
products for the management of potentially infectious and hazardous waste. This product line, sold under the names
Isosorb and LTS-Plus, is comprised of super-absorbent powders which convert potentially infectious liquid waste to
a solid form. These products are typically added to a suction canister or other fluid collection device in which fluids
are collected during surgery or in wound drainage after surgery to solidify such fluids, thereby facilitating handling,
transportation and disposal. Isosorb solidifies liquid waste without any germicidal component, and LTS-Plus is
registered with the Environmental Protection Administration (EPA) as a medical waste treatment product. This
registration adds the extra benefit to the end-user of being able to dispose of LTS-Plus treated waste directly in a
landfill, where local regulation permits. See "-Government Regulation".

Other products manufactured and sold by Microtek include Venodyne pneumatic pumps and disposable
compression sleeves used in reducing deep vein thrombosis, decanters used for sterile transfer of fluids, specially
designed disposable pouches or fluid-control products which are attached to patient drapes to collect fluids, and
wound evacuation products.

Equipment and patient drapes generated 49.0 percent of the Company's consolidated net revenues in 2005
as compared to 46.5 percent in 2004 and 55.8 percent in 2003. CleanOp product revenues represented 8.0 percent,
8.9 percent and 8.8 percent of the Company's consolidated net revenues in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.




Safety product revenues were 5.1 percent, 3.6 percent and 5.5 percent of the Company’s consolidated net revenues
in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Total international sales by the Company during 2005, 2004 and 2003 were
$32.8 million, $23.7 million and $13.3 million, respectively.

Microtek is continually focused on developing new innovative product solutions to solve its customers’
needs and believes that it has developed processes to make Microtek receptive to new product opportunities,
customer ideas and market trends. Through internal resources and use of outside agencies, Microtek seeks to
develop product generation systems which enable ideas and concepts to be quickly turned into prototypes that can be
market tested and market released in an effective and efficient manner. The Company’s research and development
expenses in 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $810,000, $1,048,000 and $940,000, respectively.

OREX Degradables

During a portion of 2004, the Company focused, through its OTI division, on commercializing its OREX
Degradable products and processing technology primarily in nuclear power markets. OTI's nuclear products consist
of protective clothing products such as coveralls, hoods and booties. These products are used in the nuclear power
industry to help protect people from radioactive contamination, primarily in connection with periodic maintenance
and re-fueling of nuclear power systems. As a part of such use, the products may become contaminated. As a
result, such products are required to be treated after use as low-level radioactive materials and thereby become
subject to regulations addressing the manner in which they are processed and disposed. OTI owns a processing
system called MICROBasix which may be used to process OREX products. The MICROBasix processing system
substantially reduces the volume of OREX products, separates radioactive contaminants and facilitates the disposal
of processed by-product material. The Company has received favorable responses from large nuclear power
facilities using the Company's products. Nuclear industry revenues amounted to approximately three percent of the
Company’s consolidated net revenues in 2005 and approximately six percent in 2004 and 2003.

Effective September 30, 2004, the Company granted to Eastern Technologies, Inc. (“ETI”) an exclusive
license to manufacture, use and sell the Company’s OREX materials and processing technology in the nuclear
industry and the homeland security industry, and for certain other industrial applications. The license extends for the
duration of the Company’s patents for the OREX materials and processing technology. Through set royalties,
management fees and proceeds from the sale of equipment and inventories to ETI, ETI is required to pay the
Company certain fixed sums over the first three-year period of this arrangement, and thereafter is required to pay
certain royalties based on the amount of ETI’s net revenues from the sale of OREX products and processing
services. Subsequent to completing this transaction with ETI, the Company no longer sells OREX products to the
nuclear power generating industry.

Marketing and Distribution
Substantially all of the Company's net revenues in 2005 were made to the healthcare industry.

The Company markets its infection control products through two channels or customer categories: domestic
branded and contract manufacturing (commonly referred to as OEM). Domestically, the Company markets its
branded products to hospitals and other surgical settings through a combined sales and marketing effort which
includes direct field sales representatives, independent sales representatives in selected regions and an inside tele-
sales team. The Company believes that its unique blend of outside and inside sales cooperation and focus allow for
maximized market penetration and a more active defense against competition. This direct sales focus also allows
the Company to establish and maintain direct contact with its customers and other end users. The Company’s
branded and non-branded products are also sold to custom procedure tray companies. Additionally, the Company's
non-branded products are sold to equipment manufacturers and other medical device companies for which Microtek
manufactures equipment drapes.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company's marketing and sales force consisted of 52 sales representatives,
43 of whom are employed by the Company and nine of whom are independent representatives, eight field sales
managers, five home office sales managers, 17 marketing managers, and 29 persons in customer support. These
persons market and sell the Company's infection control products and do not market or sell the Company's OREX
products and services.




As is customary in the healthcare industry, the Company also relies on large independent distributors to
market and distribute its products. Because distribution of medical products is heavily dependent upon these large
distributors, the Company anticipates that it will remain dependent upon these distributors and others for the
distribution of its products. If the efforts of the Company's distributors prove unsuccessful, or if such distributors
abandon or limit their distribution of the Company's products, the Company's sales may be materially adversely
affected. The Company considers its customers to be the hospital and medical professionals who use the
Company’s products, rather than these distributors.

Distributor sales to Owens & Minor and Cardinal Healthcare, two of the Company’s largest diversified
distributors, accounted for approximately 6.8 percent and 3.1 percent, respectively, of the Company’s consolidated
net revenues in 2005. Distributor sales to Owens & Minor and Cardinal Healthcare were 8.2 percent and 2.7 percent
of consolidated net revenues in 2004, respectively, and 9.0 percent and 3.4 percent of consolidated net revenues in
2003, respectively. The Company also sells its products to Cardinal Healthcare on a branded, private label and
contract manufacturing basis. In 2005, non-distributor related sales to Cardinal Healthcare amounted 9.3 percent of
the Company’s consolidated net revenues as compared to 9.9 percent and 11.3 percent in 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

The Company's total international sales during 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $32.8 million, $23.7 million and
$13.3 million, respectively. The Company’s international operations are conducted from its sales office near
Manchester, England and its two manufacturing and distribution facilities located in the Netherlands near Zutphen
and Varsseveld. Outside the United States, the Company markets its products principally through a network of more
than 100 different dealers and distributors. As of December 31, 2005, the Company had 13 sales representatives
operating in international markets. The Company is seeking to expand its direct sales force in its international
markets.

Manufacturing and Supplies

The Company manufactures its infection control products at its facilities in Columbus, Mississippi; Tyler,
Texas; the Dominican Republic; and Acuna, Mexico. The Company's facilities in Columbus, Mississippi and Tyler,
Texas also serve as distribution centers for certain of the Company's products. The Company utilizes a facility in
Jacksonville, Florida as its primary distribution point for the receipt and shipment of product and for light
manufacturing. The Company also maintains two manufacturing and distribution facilities located in the
Netherlands, in Zutphen and Varsseveld. Through the Company's relationship with Global Resources, the Company
uses contract manufacturers in China for certain of its infection control products when advantageous.

The Company maintains a variety of suppliers for its raw materials and other components necessary for the
manufacture of its products. Based on its existing arrangements with suppliers and current and anticipated
requirements, the Company believes that it has made adequate provisions for acquiring its raw materials and other
components. The Company believes that its relationships with its suppliers are strong and that these relationships
help to ensure the stability of the Company’s manufacturing processes. Historically, the Company has not been
materially affected by interruptions with its suppliers; however, if a supplier of significant raw materials or
component parts were to terminate its relationship with the Company or otherwise cease to supply the Company
with required raw materials or components, the Company’s ability to meet its manufacturing requirements may be
disrupted, which could materially impact the Company’s business and financial condition.

Order Backlog

At December 31, 2005, the Company's order backlog totaled approximately $800,000, compared to
approximately $1.4 million (in each case net of any cancellations) at December 31, 2004. All backlog orders at
December 31, 2005 are expected to be filled during the first quarter of 2006. Microtek typically sells its products
pursuant to written purchase orders which generally may be canceled without penalty prior to shipment of the
product. Accordingly, the Company does not believe that the level of backlog orders at any date is material or
indicative of future results.




Technology and Intellectual Property

The Company seeks to protect its proprietary technology by, among other means, obtaining patents and
filing patent applications for technology and products that it considers important to its business when it believes that
such patent applications will be beneficial to the Company. The Company’s patent strategies primarily affect the
Company’s OREX business. The Company also relies upon trade secrets, technical know-how, innovation and
market penetration to develop and maintain its competitive position.

The Company holds numerous patents issued by the United States Patent and Trademark Office relating to
several aspects of its OREX line of products, including several patents concerning methods of manufacture, methods
of use, and methods of disposal, and patents covering several of the OREX products themselves. The Company also
holds several patents relating to various other technologies for use in its infection control and fluid control products
business as well as in its safety products business.

The Company's current U.S. patent holdings will expire between the years 2007 and 2020. The Company
also typically files for foreign counterpart patents on those technologies that the Company considers to be material
to its business. No assurance can be given that the various components of the Company's technology protection
arrangements utilized by the Company to protect its technologies, including its patents, will be successful in
preventing others from making products competitive with those offered by the Company or its licensees.

The Company has registered as trademarks with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office “ARMATEC”,
“ISODRAPE”, “ISOLYSER”, “LTS”, “ENVIROGUARD”, “CLEARLENS”, “ISOSORB”, “MICROBASIX”,
“SMS”, “EWZSERT”, “ISOSILK”, “CLEANGOP”, “MICRODRAPE”, “LINGEMAN”, “MICROSHIELD”, “C.P.R.
MICROSHIELD”, “MDI”, “MICROTEK MEDICAL, INC.”, “INNOVATION BY DESIGN”, “VENODYNE”,
“WOUND EVAC”, “OREX” and “CERTIFIED SOLUBLE”. Microtek maintains registrations of various
trademarks that the Company believes are recognized within their principal markets.

Competition

The markets in which the Company competes are characterized by competition on the basis of quality,’
price, product design and function, environmental impact, distribution arrangements, service, customer relationship,
and convenience. Many of the Company's competitors have significantly greater resources than the Company.

Competition for the Company's safety products includes conventional methods of handling and disposing
of medical waste. The Company is aware of a variety of absorber products and disinfectant products that are
directly competitive with the Company's Isosorb and LTS-Plus products.

Government Regulation

The Company is subject to a number of Federal, state and local regulatory requirements which govern the
marketing of the Company's products and the use, treatment and disposal of these products utilized in the patient
care process. In addition, various foreign countries in which the Company's products are currently being distributed
or may be distributed in the future impose regulatory requirements.

The Company's traditional medical products (including, for example, equipment drapes) are regulated by
the FDA under medical device provisions of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (the "FDCA"). FDA
regulations classify medical devices into one of three classes, each involving an increasing degree of regulatory
control from Class I through Class I1I products. Medical devices in these categories are subject to regulations which
require, among other things, pre-market notifications or approvals, and adherence to good manufacturing practices,
labeling, record-keeping and registration requirements. Patient care devices which the Company currently markets
are classified as Class I or Class II devices subject to existing 510(k) clearances which the Company believes satisfy
FDA pre-market notification requirements. There can be no assurances as to when, or if, other such 510(k)
clearances necessary for the Company to market products developed by it in the future will be issued by the FDA.




The FDA inspects medical device manufacturers and distributors and has broad authority to order recalls of
medical devices, issue stop sale orders, seize non-complying medical devices, enjoin violations, impose civil and
criminal penalties and criminally prosecute violators.

The FDA also requires healthcare companies to satisfy record-keeping requirements and the quality system
regulation (QSR) which require that manufacturers have a quality system for the design and production of medical
devices intended for commercial distribution in the United States. Failure to comply with applicable regulatory
requirements, which may be ambiguous or unclear, can result in fines, civil and criminal penalties, stop sale orders,
loss or denial of approvals and recalls or seizures of products.

Countries in the European Union require that certain products being sold within their jurisdictions obtain a
CE mark and be manufactured in compliance with certain requirements. The Company has CE mark approval to
sell its safety and most of its medical device products in Europe. One of the conditions to obtaining CE mark status
involves the qualification of the Company's manufacturing plants and corporate offices under certain certification
processes. All of the Company's manufacturing plants and administrative offices have obtained such certifications,
except the Company's manufacturing facilities located in Tyler, Texas and the Company’s executive offices in
Alpharetta, Georgia which do not hold such certifications. To maintain CE mark approval, the Company has to
satisfy continuing obligations including annual inspections by European notified bodies as well as satisfy record
keeping, product qualification and other quality assurance requirements. The notified bodies have the aunthority to
stop the Company's use of the CE mark if the Company fails to meet these standards. While the Company believes
that its operations at these facilities are in compliance with requirements to maintain CE mark status, no assurances
are provided that such certifications will be maintained or that other foreign regulatory requirements will not
adversely affect the Company's marketing efforts in foreign jurisdictions.

Under the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act ("FIFRA"), any product which claims to kill
microorganisms through chemical action must be registered with the EPA. FIFRA affects primarily the Company's
fluid encapsulation and infectious waste treatment products including LTS-Plus, a product which provides treatment
for encapsulation and disinfection of suction canister waste. LTS-Plus is registered with the EPA as a chemical
device.

State and local regulations of the Company's products and services are highly variable. Individual state
registration of LTS-Plus is required for just over half of the states in the United States as a condition to landfill of
treated suction canisters. In 1997, as a result of a review of an existing approval in California for the landfilling in
California of waste treated by LTS, California authorities revoked such approval and have also not given approval
for the use of LTS-Plus. While LTS offers benefits unrelated to landfilling, such action has adversely affected the
Company's ability to sell LTS-Plus. The Company is continuing the process of obtaining from the various states
approval to landfill waste treated by LTS-Plus, and has obtained such approval from several states not including
California. The rules for disinfecting infectious waste are being revised on a national standard. The outcome of the
national standard will play a very important part in the life of LTS-Plus. No assurances can be provided that the
prior regulatory actions or pending regulatory reviews will not continue to have an adverse effect upon the sales of
the Company's sanitizing liquid absorbent products.

Regulators at the federal, state and local level have imposed, are currently considering and are expected to
continue to impose regulations on medical and other waste. No prediction can be made of the potential effect of any
such future regulations, and there can be no assurance that future legislation or regulations will not increase the costs
of the Company's products or prohibit the sale or use of the Company's products, in either event having an adverse
effect on the Company's business.

Employees

As of December 31, 2005, the Company employed 1,719 full-time employees, 43 part-time employees and
nine people as independent contractors. Of these, 102 were employed in marketing, sales and customer support,
1,429 in manufacturing, nine in research and development, and 222 in administrative positions. The Company
believes its relationship with its employees is good.




Insurance

The Company maintains commercial general liability insurance which provides coverage with respect to
product liability claims. The manufacture and sale of the Company's products entail an inherent risk of liability.
The Company believes that its insurance is adequate in amount and coverage. There can be no assurance that any
future claims will not exceed applicable insurance coverage. Furthermore, no assurance can be given that such
liability insurance will be available at a reasonable cost or that the Company will be able to maintain adequate levels
of liability insurance in the future. In the event that claims in excess of these coverage amounts are incurred, they
could have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

Environmental Matters

The Company is not a party to any material environmental regulation proceedings alleging that the
Company has unlawfully discharged materials into the environment. The Company does not anticipate the need for
any material capital expenditures for environmental control facilities during the next 18 to 24 months.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Low barriers to entry for competitive products could cause the Company to reduce the prices for its
products or lose customers. Most of the Company's infection control products are not protected by patents, and
some of such infection control products that are protected by patents are subject to competition from products which
may be manufactured or used in a way which does not infringe upon the Company's patents. In addition, other
barriers to entry, such as manufacturing processes and regulatory approvals, may not prevent the introduction of
products competitive with the Company's infection control products. The introduction of competitive products or
other competitive marketing strategies, including competitive marketing from companies outside the United States
through the internet, could force the Company to lower its prices for its products or otherwise adversely affect the
Company's operating results.

Large purchasers of the Company’s products regularly negotiate for reductions in prices for the
Company’s products, which may reduce the Company’s profits. While the Company has been able to substantially
maintain Microtek's gross margins during 2005, the large customers to which Microtek sells its products regularly
negotiate for reductions in pricing of products which they purchase. This could require that the Company reduce the
prices at which it sells its products or revise the manner in which the Company sells or distributes its products.
These changes could reduce Microtek's sales or gross margins. or both, and potentially have an adverse effect on the
Company's operating results.

Because a few distributors control much of the delivery of hospital supplies to hospitals, the Company
relies significantly on these distributors in connection with the sale of the Company’s branded products. As is
customary in the healthcare industry, the Company has historically relied to a significant extent on a few large
distributors to market and distribute its branded products. Hospitals often prefer to purchase products from one or a
few distributors to facilitate the delivery, control and management of the hospital’s inventory of supplies. Hospitals
accordingly purchase most of their products from a few large distributors, and the Company anticipates that it will
remain dependent upon these distributors and others for the distribution of its products. If the efforts of the
Company’s distributors prove unsuccessful, or if such distributors abandon or limit their distribution of the
Company’s products (such as could occur if a distributor is unable to obtain price adjustments which a distributor
seeks from the Company), the Company’s sales may be materially adversely affected. During 2004, as a result of the
Company’s efforts to reduce its distribution expense with Owens & Minor, Owens & Minor chose to limit the
manner in which it distributes some of the Company’s products. This has resulted in increased competitive pressure
on some of Microtek’s products including particularly its CleanOp products. This increase in competitive pressure
has adversely affected the selling price of these Microtek products, which has had and may continue to have an
adverse effect on the Company’s operating results.

The Company considers its customers to be the hospital and medical professionals who use the Company’s
products, rather than these distributors. Distributor sales to Owens & Minor and Cardinal Healthcare, two of the
Company’s largest diversified distributors, accounted for approximately 6.8 percent and 3.1 percent, respectively, of
the Company’s consolidated net revenues in 2005. Distributor sales to Owens & Minor and Cardinal Healthcare




were 8.2 percent and 2.7 percent of consolidated net revenues in 2004, respectively, and 9.0 percent and 3.4 percent
of consolidated net revenues in 2003, respectively. The Company also sells its products to Cardinal Healthcare on a
branded, private label and contract manufacturing basis. In 2005, non-distributor related sales to Cardinal
Healthcare amounted to 9.3 percent of the Company’s consolidated net revenues as compared to 9.9 percent and
11.3 percent in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company'’s relatively small sales and marketing force may place the Company at a competitive
disadvantage to its competition. At December 31, 2005, the Company’s marketing and sales force consisted of 102
individuals, including 56 people in sales and 46 people in marketing and customer support. Additionally, the
Company has nine independent contractors involved in its sales and marketing efforts. Included in the Company’s
sales and marketing force are 13 sales representatives who operate in international markets. The Company is
seeking to expand its direct sales force in its international markets. Other companies with which the Company
competes have substantially larger sales forces and greater brand awareness, placing the Company at a competitive
disadvantage. For example, the Company may not be able to reach certain potential customers due to the
Company's inability to have its products included within certain group purchasing organizations' lists of approved
products.

The Company’s contract manufacturing division relies upon a small number of customers, the loss of any
of which could have a material adverse impact on the Company. Microtek's contract manufacturing division, which
accounted for 25.4 percent of the Company's consolidated net revenues in 2005, relies upon a relatively smail
number of customers for most its net revenues. The loss of any one or more of such customers, which may occur
unexpectedly, could have a material and disproportionately adverse impact upon the Company's net revenues and
operating results.

The inability of the Company to complete acquisitions of businesses at an attractive cost could adversely
affect the Company’s growth. Part of Microtek's growth strategy involves completing strategic acquisitions. The
Company's ability to complete strategic acquisitions is subject to a number of variables outside the control of the
Company including the Company's ability to find attractive and complementary acquisition opportunities at an
attractive cost which the Company can afford or can finance on acceptable terms. Failure to successfully complete
strategic acquisitions on favorable terms may adversely affect the Company's growth rate.

If the Company is successful in acquiring businesses, the failure fo successfully integrate those businesses
could adversely affect the Company. As the Company completes acquisitions, it encounters risks that it will not
successfully integrate the acquired products or business operations into its business and thereby fail to achieve the
benefits sought to be achieved through these acquisitions. In addition, the Company is generally required to invest in
an acquired company’s financial and disclosure controls to improve on assurances that the Company will timely
receive complete information to accurately fulfill its financial reporting and disclosure obligations. The failure to
successfully integrate acquired businesses in the Company's operations could adversely affect the Company's
operating results.

The Company’s growing international operations subject the Company’s operating results 1o numerous
additional risks. Of the Company’s $134.5 million in consolidated net revenues for the year ended December 31,
2005, $32.8 million, or 24.4 percent, were generated from sales of products outside the United States. In addition,
the Company maintains manufacturing facilities in the Dominican Republic, Mexico and the Netherlands which are
important components of the Company’s manufacturing operations. International sales and operations are subject to
risks including political, economic and other risks and uncertainties inherent in the countries in which the Company
operates; fluctuations in currency exchange rates, in particular the relationship of the U.S. dollar to the functional
currencies of the Company’s international subsidiaries which could result in currency translations that materially
impact the Company’s revenues and earnings; unexpected changes in regulatory requirements and laws; difficulties
in transferring earnings from foreign subsidiaries to the Company; burdens of complying with a wide variety of
foreign laws and labor practices; export duties, quotas and embargoes; and business interruptions due to terrorist
activities or acts of God such as hurricanes. Because the Company expects that a significant and growing proportion
of its revenues will continue to come from international operations and because the Company expects to continue to
rely upon off-shore manufacturing, the occurrence of any of the above events could materially and adversely affect
the Company’s operating results.
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Non-performance by the Company’s third-party licensee with respect to the development of the Company’s
OREX materials and processing technology could adversely affect the Company. During 2004, the Company
granted to ETI an exclusive license for the Company’s OREX materials and processing technology in the nuclear
industry and the homeland security industry, and for certain other industrial applications. Except for these activities
with ETI under the Company’s licensing arrangement, the Company is not actively engaged in any business
development efforts associated with the Company’s OREX materials and processing technologies. The Company is
accordingly entirely dependent upon the efforts of ETI with respect to the operating results generated by the
Company’s OREX materials and processing technology. In the event ETI fails to perform its obligations under the
Company’s licensing arrangements with ETI, or is unsuccessful in growing the OREX business, the Company may
not achieve a continuing return on its investment in this business and technology and may be required to record
losses with respect to the Company’s existing inventories of OREX products and materials which the Company
plans to sell to ETI.

The loss of any of the Company’s key personnel, particularly its President, could adversely affect the
Company. The Company believes that its ability to succeed will depend to a significant extent upon the continued
services of a limited number of key personnel, and the ability of the Company to attract and retain key personnel.
The Company currently has three executive officers. The loss of any one of the Corapany's executive officers could
have a material adverse effect on the Company as the Company may not be able to attract and retain suitable
replacements for its executive positions. The Company does not maintain key man life insurance on any of its
executive officers other than a $1.5 million policy on Mr. Lee, the Company's President and Chief Executive
Officer.

Markets in which the Company competes are highly competitive, which may adversely affect the
Company’s growth and operating results. There are many companies engaged in the development, manufacturing
and marketing of products and technologies that are competitive with the Company's products and technologies.
Many such competitors are large companies with significantly greater financial resources than the Company. For
example, the Company seeks to sell its antimicrobial incise drapes to the healthcare industry, and the Company has a
small market share in the sales of these products at this time. Therefore, the Company will be required to displace
sales of competitive products in this industry to gain market presence. There can be no assurance that the Company's
competitors will not substantially increase the resources devoted to the development, manufacturing and marketing
of products competitive with the Company's products. The successful marketing of competing products by one or
more of the Company's competitors could have a material adverse effect on the Company.

The Company’s products entail risks of liability, which could result in claims against the Company. The
manufacture and sale of the Company's products entails an inherent risk of liability. Product liability claims may be
asserted against the Company in the event that the use of the Company's products or processing systems are alleged
to have resulted in injury or other adverse events, and such claims may involve large amounts of alleged damages
and significant defense costs. Although the Company currently maintains product liability insurance providing
coverage for such claims, there can be no assurance that the liability limits or the scope of the Company's insurance
policy will be adequate to protect against such potential claims. In addition, the Company's insurance policies must
be renewed annually. While the Company has been able to obtain product liability insurance in the past, such
insurance varies in cost, is difficult to obtain and may not be available on commercially reasonable terms in the
future, if it is available at all. A successful claim against the Company in excess of its available insurance coverage
could have a material adverse effect on the Company. In addition, the Company's business reputation could be
adversely affected by product liability claims, regardless of their merit or eventual outcome. See "Business -
Insurance".

The Company’s products are subject to extensive governmental regulations, compliance or non-compliance
with which could adversely affect the Company. The development, manufacture and marketing of the Company's
products are subject to extensive government regulation in the United States by Federal, state and local agencies
including the EPA and the FDA. Similar regulatory agencies exist in other countries with a wide variety of
regulatory review processes and procedures. The process of obtaining and maintaining FDA and any other required
regulatory clearances or approvals of the Company's products is lengthy, expensive and uncertain, and regulatory
authorities may delay or prevent product introductions or require additional tests prior to introduction. The FDA
also requires healthcare companies to satisfy the quality system regulation. Failure to comply with applicable
regulatory requirements, which may be ambiguous or unclear, can result in fines, civil and criminal penalties, stop
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sale orders, loss or denial of approvals and recalls or seizures of products. There can be no assurance that changes in
existing regulations or the adoption of new regulations will not occur, which could prevent the Company from
obtaining approval for (or delay the approval of) various products or could affect market demand for the Company's
products.

New products and technologies could cause the Company’s products to become less attractive or obsolete.
Many companies are engaged in the development of products and technologies to address the need for safe and cost-
effective prevention of infection in healthcare markets. There can be no assurance that superior products or
technologies will not be developed or that alternative approaches will not prove superior to the Company's infection
control products. For example, some companies are attempting to develop technologies to sterilize equipment
maintained in the operating room which would compete directly with the Company's equipment drapes. Any such
developments would have a material adverse effect on the Company's operations and profitability.

The Company’s strategies to protect its proprietary assets may be ineffective, allowing increased
competition with the Company. The Company holds various issued patents and has various patent applications
pending relative to its OREX Degradables products. See “Business — Technology and Intellectual Property.” There
can be no assurance that any of the Company’s patents will prove to be valid and enforceable, that any patent will
provide adequate protection for the technology, process or product it is intended to cover or that any patents will be
issued as a result of pending or future applications. Failure to obtain patents pursuant to the Company’s patent
applications could have a material adverse effect on the Company and its operations. It is also possible that
competitors will be able to develop materials, processes or products, including other methods of disposing of
contaminated waste, outside the patent protection the Company has or may obtain, or that such competitors may
circumvent, or successfully challenge the validity of patents issued to the Company. Although there is a statutory
presumption of a patent’s validity, the issuance of a patent is not conclusive as to its validity or as to the enforceable
scope of the claims of the patent. In the event that another party infringes the Company’s patent or trade secret
rights, the enforcement of such right is generally at the option of the Company and can be a lengthy and costly
process, with no guarantee of success. Further, no assurance can be given that the Company’s other protection
strategies such as confidentiality agreements will be effective in protecting the Company’s technologies. Due to
such factors, no assurance can be given that the various components of the Company’s technology protection
arrangements utilized by the Company, including its patents, will be successful in preventing other companies from
making products competitive with those offered by the Company or its licensees, including OREX Degradables.

The Company may encounter claims for violating the intellectual property rights of others. Although to
date no claims have been brought against the Company alleging that its technology or products infringe upon the
intellectual property rights of others, there can be no assurance that such claims will not be brought against the
Company or its licensees in the future, or that any such claims will not be successful. If such a claim were
successful, the Company’s business could be materially adversely affected. In addition to any potential monetary
liability for damages, the Company could be required to obtain a license in order to continue to manufacture or
market the product or products in question or could be enjoined from making or selling such product or products if
such a license were not made available on acceptable terms. If the Company or its licensees becomes involved in
such litigation, it may require significant Company resources, which may materially adversely affect the Company.
See “Business - Technology and Intellectual Property”.

The Company’s stock price may fluctuate and be volatile. The market prices for securities of companies
with a very small market capitalization such as the Company can be highly volatile. Various factors, including
factors that are not related to the Company's operating performance, may cause significant volume and price
fluctuations in the market, which may limit an investor's liquidity in the Company's common stock and could result
in a loss in the value of such investment.

Accounting for income taxes makes it difficult to understand and compare the Company’s operating results
from period to period. Accounting for income taxes has had a significant impact upon the Company’s earnings. At
December 31, 2005, the Company had deferred income tax assets, before consideration of any valuation allowances,
of approximately $27.7 million, including operating loss carryforwards for Federal and state income tax purposes of
approximately $26.9 million. The Company’s operating loss carryforwards, to the extent not covered by the
valuation allowance, are expected to be used by the Company to offset future U.S. Federal and state income tax
liabilities as they accrue. At December 31, 2005, the Company has recorded a valuation allowance of approximately
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$4.9 million against its deferred income tax assets resulting in net deferred income tax assets of approximately $22.8
million at December 31, 2005. Determining the amount of the valuation allowance against the Company’s deferred
tax assets is highly sensitive to significant judgments about the Company’s ability to generate future taxable income.
Adjustments in such judgments may result in significant changes to the tax provision in the Company’s results of
operations and thereby significantly impact the Company’s profitability, although such adjustments have no impact
on the Company’s cash position or cash flow. The effect of these adjustments on the Company’s financial
statements, if any, may make it more difficult to compare the operating results of the Company from period to
period or to compare the operating results of the Company with other companies. This could also adversely affect
the market prices at which securities of the Company trade on public markets.

Fluctuations in the value of the dollar against foreign currencies have in the past and may in the future
adversely affect the Company’s operating results. International sales by the Company during 2005 were $32.8
million. Approximately $7.6 million of the Company’s international sales in 2005 were billed and paid in currencies
other than the functional currency of the Company’s international subsidiaries. Currency translations on
international sales and other transactions that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
Company’s subsidiaries could be adversely affected in the future by the relationship of the U.S. dollar to these
functional currencies resulting in currency translation charges or benefits that may materially impact the Company’s
revenues and earnings.

The volatility in the rate of exchange of the Dominican peso with the U.S. dollar and actions to compensate
for this volatility could adversely affect the Company’s operating results. During late 2004 and most of 2005, the
value of the Dominican peso substantially increased in relation to the U.S. dollar. As this occurs, the costs of the
Company’s inventory increases because the Company manufactures a material portion of its inventory at its
facilities located in the Dominican Republic. Increases in the value of the Dominican peso relative to the U.S. dollar
in the future may similarly result in increased costs to the Company for its inventory, which would adversely affect
the Company’s operating results. The Company cannot mitigate this risk by hedging strategies based on forward
contracts to purchase Dominican pesos because these contracts are not readily available for purchase in established
markets. The Company pursues other strategies to mitigate this currency exchange risk, such as maintaining bank
deposits in the Dominican Republic denominated in pesos. These bank deposits are generally not insured due to the
unavailability of insurance on larger deposits in the Dominican Republic. This causes the Company to encounter
risks of losses on deposits.

The Company’s expenses for raw materials and product distribution are adversely affected by increases in
the price for petroleum. A significant portion of the raw materials required by Microtek to manufacture its products
and a significant portion of the Company’s distribution expenses are highly dependent upon the price for petroleum.
As the price for petroleum rises, the costs for these raw materials and amount of these distribution expenses also
increase. Due to competitive pressures and other contractual limitations, Microtek may not readily pass these price
increases on to its customers. While the Company has been successful in offsetting these pricing pressures with
other manufacturing efficiencies and cost controls, continuing increases in prices of raw materials and distribution
expenses may adversely affect the Company’s operating results.

The Company maintains a Rights Agreement which may discourage or make it more difficult for a person
to obtain control of the Company. On December 19, 1996, the Company's Board of Directors adopted a shareholder
protection rights agreement (the "Rights Agreement"). Under the Rights Agreement, a dividend of one right
("Right") to purchase a fraction of a share of a newly created class of preferred stock was declared for each share of
common stock outstanding at the close of business on December 31, 1996. The Rights, which expire on December
31, 2006, may be exercised only if certain conditions are met, such as the acquisition (or the announcement of a
tender offer, the consummation of which would result in the acquisition) of beneficial ownership of 15% or more of
the common stock ("15% Acquisition") of the Company by a person or affiliated group. The Rights, if exercised,
would cause substantial dilution to a person or group of persons that attempts to acquire the Company without the
prior approval of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may cause the Company to redeem the rights for
nominal consideration, subject to certain exceptions. The Rights Agreement may discourage or make more difficult
any attempt by a person or a group of persons to obtain control of the Company.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company leases approximately 20,200 square feet of office space located in Alpharetta, Georgia under
a lease which expires November 30, 2015. The Company uses this space as its principal executive offices.

The Company owns a 13,000 square foot building and a 20,000 square foot building in Columbus,
Mississippi that are used for administrative offices and for warehousing and office space, respectively.

The Company currently conducts its equipment drape and fluid control manufacturing business from three
locations. First, in Columbus, Mississippi, the Company owns a 48,400 square foot manufacturing building and
leases approximately 23,750 square feet of additional warehouse and storage space on generally a month-to-month
basis. Secondly, the Company leases five manufacturing facilities in the Dominican Republic totaling
approximately 137,000 square feet under two operating leases. The first lease, which covers approximately 123,500
square feet, expires on October 1, 2010, with two renewal options for four years each. The second lease covers
approximately 13,500 square feet and expires on December 31, 2006. Thirdly, the Company leases a 62,700 square
foot facility in Tyler, Texas where it manufactures materials for other drape converters under a lease which expires
July 31,2012,

The Company’s facility in Acuna, Mexico houses 21,250 square feet of manufacturing and warehouse
space under a lease that expires on July 31, 2007. The Company’s leased facilities in Gurnee, Illinois, consisting of
a 44,300 square foot warehouse and office building and a 30,000 square foot manufacturing and warehouse building,
were closed in the second quarter of 2005, and those operations were consolidated into the Company’s operations in
the Dominican Republic, Columbus, Mississippi and Tyler, Texas.

The Company also leases approximately 88,000 square feet of warehouse and distribution space in
Jacksonville, Florida under a lease which expires on October 31, 2014. The Company uses this facility for
distribution of finished products, distribution of materials to the Company's Dominican Republic facility and light
manufacturing.

Through a subsidiary, the Company leases approximately 2,500 square feet of office space near
Manchester, England under a lease which expires in October 2007.

The Company’s manufacturing and distribution operations in the Netherlands are currently conducted from
a 49,000 square foot facility in Zutphen under a lease which expires on November 30, 2006 and a 17,000 square foot
facility in Varsseveld under a lease which expires on April 30, 2008. At these facilities, the Company has
approximately 24,000 square feet of manufacturing space, approximately 35000 square feet of warehouse and
storage space, and approximately 7,000 square feet of administrative office space. In December 2005, the Company
signed a lease for a 41,000 square foot manufacturing, warehouse and office building that is currently under
construction. Completion of the building is expected in late 2006 at which time the Company’s current Zutphen
manufacturing and administration operations will be relocated to the new facility. The new lease provides for a first
right of refusal for an additional 10,800 square feet of expansion capacity which would accommodate the potential
consolidation of the operations currently conducted in the Varsseveld facility when its lease expires in 2008. The
operating lease for the new building extends through November 30, 2016, with a right to terminate the lease after
five years.

The Company believes that its present facilities are adequate for its current requirements.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
From time to time the Company is involved in litigation and legal proceedings in the ordinary course of

business. Such litigation and legal proceedings have not resulted in any material losses to date, and the Company
does not believe that the outcome of any existing claims will have a material adverse effect on its business.

14




ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no submissions of matters to a vote of the Company's shareholders during the three months
ended December 31, 2005.

Directors and Executive Officers

The current directors and executive officers of the Company are as follows:

Name Position

Dan R. Lee Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, Director
Mark J. Alvarez Chief Operating Officer

Roger G. Wilson Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary

Kenneth F. Davis Director

Michael E. Glasscock, IIT Director

Rosdon Hendrix Director

Gene R. McGrevin Director

Marc R. Sarni Director

Ronald L. Smorada Director

Dan R. Lee (age 58) was appointed Chairman of the Board of Directors effective July 1, 2002, and was
appointed to serve as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in December 2000. Additionally, he
continues his role as the President of Microtek, a subsidiary of the Company. He became an executive officer of the
Company following the conclusion of the acquisition of Microtek in 1996, and became a director of the Company in
December 1996. Prior to accepting such positions with the Company, Mr. Lee had served as the Vice President and
Chief Operating and Financial Officer of Microtek since 1987. Previous to that time, he was engaged in the public
accounting practice, including more than five years with KPMG LLP. Mr. Lee serves on the Board of NBC Capital
Corp., a bank holding company traded on the American Stock Exchange.

Mark J. Alvarez (age 46) was appointed Chief Operating Officer of the Company in August 2005. Prior to
joining the Company and since 2002, Mr. Alvarez served as the President of Recall North America, a document
management solutions company with 2,000 employees across 150 facilities in the U.S., Canada and Mexico. Prior
to joining Recall North America, Mr. Alvarez served in progressively more senior positions with General Electric
Company from 1983 to 2002, itially with GE Medical Systems and thereafter in more senior leadership positions
within General Electric’s Corporate Marketing and Sales group across all of the industrial and capital businesses of
General Electric Company. Mr. Alvarez serves as an Advisory Board member for Nioxin Research Laboratories,
Inc.

Roger G. "Jerry" Wilson (age 62) was appointed Chief Financial Officer of the Company in December
2000, in addition to serving since July 1998 in the position of Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Microtek. Mr. Wilson served as Vice President of Finance for the White Knight Healthcare subsidiary after its
acquisition by the Company in 1995. Prior to accepting such positions, Mr. Wilson had served as corporate
controller of White Knight Healthcare, Inc. since 1987. Mr. Wilson was also employed by Akzo America, Inc. for
twelve years in various accounting and income tax management positions. Prior to that, Mr. Wilson, who is a
Certified Public Accountant, practiced public accounting for seven years.

Kenneth F. Davis (age 54) was elected a director of the Company in January 1996. Dr. Davis was a
practicing surgeon on the staff of the Harbin Clinic and Redmond Regional Medical Center in Rome, Georgia from
1986 to 2000. Dr. Davis now serves as the Chief Executive Officer and President of the Harbin Clinic, the largest
multi-specialty clinic in Georgia. In addition, Dr. Davis serves on the Board of Heritage First Bank, Adams Product
Management, Hydro Dynamics, Inc. and the Georgia Land Trust. He also serves on the Board of Visitors for Berry
Coliege.

Michael E. Glasscock (age 72) was appointed a Director of the Company in December 2002. Dr.
Glasscock, a physician, practiced otology and neurotology for 35 years and retired from the active practice of




medicine in 1997. From 1997 to 1998, Dr. Glasscock served as Chairman of St. Cloud Medical, a physician practice
management company, from 1998 to 2001 he served as Chairman of TrueSound, Inc., a hearing aid dispensing
company, and since 2001 he has served as Chairman of Tympany, a start-up company that has developed an
automated hearing test. Dr. Glasscock has published in excess of 250 scientific articles and founded the American
Journal of Otology and the E.A R. Foundation, was the past president of the American Otologic Society, and has
been an active entrepreneur with several medical related companies.

Rosdon Hendrix (age 66) was elected a Director of the Company in December 1994. Until he retired in
June 1992, Mr. Hendrix served for approximately 30 years in various financial positions for General Motors
Corporation, including serving as Resident Comptroller from 1975 until his retirement. Since June 1992, Mr.
Hendrix has engaged in efficiency consulting studies and other consulting services with various governmental
authorities and businesses. In addition, since June 1997, Mr. Hendrix has performed information technology
consulting services for Lockheed Martin. On December 1, 2003, Lockheed Martin's commercial division was
acquired by Affiliated Computer Services, Inc. (ACS), and Mr. Hendrix has been retained by ACS as a consultant.

Gene R. McGrevin (age 63) was appointed Chairman of the Board of Directors and acting President of the
Company in April 1997, and currently serves as a Director of the Company. Mr. McGrevin served as chairman of
P.E.T Net Pharmaceutical Services, LLC, a manufacturer and distributor of radiopharmaceuticals, from May 1997
until January 2001. Mr. McGrevin previously served as Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Syncor
International Corp., a public company in the nuclear medicine industry, with which Mr. McGrevin was associated
since 1989. Prior to managing Syncor, Mr. McGrevin served in executive positions with various healthcare
businesses including President of the Healthcare Products Group of Kimberly-Clark Corporation, founder and
President of a consulting firm specializing in the healthcare industry and an executive officer of VHA Enterprises,
Inc. Mr. McGrevin is currently chairman of the executive committee of Hydro Dynamics, Inc. and serves as
chairman of the Board of Real Time Medical Data, LLC.

Marc R. Sarni (age 47) was elected a Director of the Company in May 2005. Mr. Sarni is a Principal at
Cornerstone Investment LLC, a group engaged in the investment, development and property management of
residential and commercial real estate. Mr. Sarni worked as an investment banker at A.G. Edwards and Sons, Inc.
for 17 years, and from 1997 until 2003, was the Managing Director responsible for establishing and managing the
Healthcare Industry Group within the corporate finance department’s Emerging Growth Sector. The Healthcare
Industry Group of A.G. Edwards focused primarily on emerging growth medical technology, biotechnology,
specialty pharmaceutical and healthcare services companies. Prior to joining A.G. Edwards, Mr. Sarni spent three
years working as a Certified Public Accountant at PriceWaterhouse (now PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP). Mr. Sarni
currently serves as a member of the Board of Managers for Ascension Health Ventures, the strategic health venture-
investing subsidiary of Ascension Health, the nation’s largest Catholic and not-for-profit healthcare system. Mr.
Sarni serves on the Boards of Hollis-Eden Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Young Innovations, Inc.

Ronald L. Smorada (age 59) was elected a Director of the Company in May 1999. Dr. Smorada has long
been an active participant in the global nonwovens industry. From 1995 to 1999, Dr. Smorada held senior
management positions at Reemay, Fiberweb and BBA US Holdings, the latter being the parent of the former two
with nonwoven sales in excess of $800 million. During this time, he worked in the development, acquisition and
integration of new and existing businesses, both domestic and international. Since 2000, Dr. Smorada has been
involved with establishing new businesses which develop novel nonwoven materials for entirely new uses. His
major focus is the application and conversion of science and technical concepts into meaningful businesses.

PARTII

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information
The common stock is traded and quoted on The Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol "MTMD". The

following table shows the quarterly range of high and low sales prices of the common stock during the periods
indicated since December 31, 2003.
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Common Stock

High Low
2005
First Quarter $4.17 $325
Second Quarter $3.96 $3.30
Third Quarter $4.11 $3.25
Fourth Quarter $392 $331
2004
First Quarter $ 6.20 $ 391
Second Quarter $5.39 $392
Third Quarter $5.13 $3.07
Fourth Quarter $ 446 $320

Holders

On March 10, 2006, the closing sales price for the common stock as reported by The Nasdag Stock Market
was $3.48 per share. As of March 10, 2006, the Company had approximately 1,300 shareholders of record.

Dividends

The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its common stock. The Company currently
intends to retain any future earnings to finance the growth and development of its business and therefore does not
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Moreover, the Company's credit facility prohibits the
Company from declaring or paying cash dividends without the prior written consent of its lenders. See
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital
Resources"”. Accordingly, the Company does not intend to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In February 2000, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to five percent (5%) of the
Company’s outstanding common stock from time to time in open market or private transactions. As amended to
date, the Company’s share repurchase program authorizes the repurchase of up to an aggregate of 2,000,000 shares.
As of December 31, 2005, the Company had repurchased 1,381,514 shares for an aggregate repurchase price of $2.8
million. The program expires on December 31, 2006, unless extended. The following table summarizes the
Company’s share repurchases during the Company’s fourth quarter of 2005:

Total Number of Shares Maximum Number of
Purchased as Part of Shares that May Yet
Total Number of Average Price Publicly Announced Be Purchased Under

Period Shares Purchased Paid per Share Repurchase Plans the Repurchase Plans
October 1 to 31, 2005 - $ - - 657,705
November 1 to 30, 2005 39.219 3 3.76 39219 618,486
December 1 to 31, 2005 - $ - - 618486
Total 39219 S 3.76 39219 618,486

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth summary historical financial data for each of the five years in the period
ended December 31, 2005.

In March 2004, the Company acquired a small line of orthopedic products. Effective May 28, 2004, the

Company acquired certain businesses of International Medical Products, B.V. and affiliates (“IMP”) related to the
development, manufacture, marketing and sale of medical device equipment covers, cardiac thoracic drain systems,
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gynecological devices and wound care products. Effective September 30, 2004, the Company completed a license
to ETI to manufacture, use and sale the Company’s OREX materials and processing technology in the nuclear
industry and homeland security industry and for certain other industrial applications, and the Company completed
the associated sale to ETI of certain equipment and inventory. Effective November 1, 2003, the Company acquired
substantially all of the assets of Plasco, Inc. Effective November 29, 2002, the Company acquired the surgical drape
product line of Gyrus ENT. During the first quarter of 2001, the Company acquired the drape and CleanOp product
lines of Deka Medical and acquired the MICROBasix processor equipment and related technology.

The summary historical financial data should be read in conjunction with the historical consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the related notes thereto, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and other financial data appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
The summary historical financial data for each of the five years in the period ended December 31, 2005 has been
derived from the Company's audited consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Statement of Operations Data:
(in thousands, except per share data)
NEE SALES .ot ittt ettt er e e e st n et $ 79470 $ 85228 % 98664 $ 126581 $ 134,458
LICENSING TEVENUES w.vovivveriierieisierisiseecresnesecessasssresenesnans 1497 1,427 -- -- --
TOtal FEVEINUES ..ot 80,967 86,655 98,664 126,581 134,458
Cost of goods sold......cccoovvviiiiiiiec e 48,497 52.554 59 448 77017 81932
GIoSs Profit ..ooeivei st 32,470 34,101 39,216 49,564 52,526
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative 25,166 27,326 31,261 39483 40,526
Amortization of intangibles .............. 1,520 456 440 809 961
Research and development.........cocooceieiiiniine 1,644 736 940 1,048 810
Total operating eXpenses........c..ooevvveveervinnaen. 28,330 28,518 32,641 41,340 42,297
Gain (loss) on dispositions -- -~ 982 215 (139)
Income from oOperations ..........ccocecvvrreccrnnene, 4,140 5,583 7,557 8,439 10,090
Net other (expense) INCOME ........ccoovvererriiriicrinrranens (489) (340) (44) 718 (244)
Income before income taxes ......cocoeeveveeeriiieeccieeeneen, 3,651 5,243 7,513 9,157 9,846
Income tax benefit ........oocoiieeiiiien e (1,138) (3.171) (8,510) (764) (4,658)
NEEINCOME v eveeieriseeeiasctenrserss et enee s $ 4789 % 8414 § 16023 % 9921 $§ 14,504
Net income per share — basic ........ocoocveeeriieiriveenieiieenns $ 011 § 020 § 038 $ 023 % 0.33
Net income per share — diluted ..............coooeveeeirriecennn. $ 011 % 020 $ 037 $ 022 % 0.33
Weighted average number of common and
common equivalent shares outstanding — Basic............. 41,651 42,125 42 206 43,005 43,347
Weighted average number of common and
common equivalent shares outstanding — Diluted ....... 41,842 42,789 43,251 44,500 44 050
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Year Ended December 31,

Balance Sheet Data 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

(in thousands)
Working capital $ 44946 $ 42,950 $ 52,520 $ 48,819 $ 59,154
Intangible assets, net 26,351 29,392 30,488 38,951 36,997
Total assets 94,330 96,696 118,299 131,069 140,758
Long-term debt 13,313 7,367 8,528 5479 1,669
Total shareholders' equity 69,588 78,886 96,544 108,643 124 066

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION

The following discussion and analysis is intended to provide an understanding of the Company’s
consolidated financial position and results of operations for the three year period ended December 31, 2005. The
consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes included elsewhere in the Company’s Annual Report
contain detailed information that should be referred to in conjunction with the following discussion and analysis.

General

The Company conducts substantially all of its operations through its subsidiary, Microtek Medical, Inc.
("Microtek"). OREX Technologies International ("OTI"), a division of the Company, focused on the
commercialization of the Company's OREX degradable products and disposal technologies to the nuclear power
generating industry until this business was licensed to a third party in September 2004.

Microtek, a market leading healthcare company within its area of focus, manufactures and sells infection
control products, fluid control products, safety products and other products to healthcare professionals for use in
environments such as operating rooms and ambulatory surgical centers. Microtek's core product line consists of a
large variety of disposable equipment drapes and specialty patient drapes. Microtek has established a broad product
selling system through multiple channels including distributors, directly through its own sales force, original
equipment manufacturers, and private label customers. Additionally, Microtek has a strong presence as a branded
component supplier to custom procedure tray companies. Through its acquisition of certain businesses of
International Medical Products, B.V. and affiliates (collectively, “IMP”) on May 28, 2004, Microtek added to its
operations the development, manufacture, marketing and distribution in Europe of high quality dip-molded medical
devices (primarily ultrasound probe covers), other equipment covers, cardiac thoracic drain systems, gynecological
devices and wound care products.

OTTI’s most recent efforts focused primarily on the commercialization of its OREX degradable products and
technology for disposing of such products in the nuclear power generating industry. In September 2004, the
Company entered into an agreement (the “License Agreement”) which grants to Eastern Technologies, Inc. (“ETI”)
a worldwide exclusive license to manufacture, use and sell the Company’s OREX materials and processing
technology in the nuclear industry and the homeland security industry and for certain other industrial applications.
Concurrent with the signing of the License Agreement, the Company also entered into an exclusive three-year
supply agreement (the “Supply Agreement”) under which the Company has agreed to provide certain sourcing and
supply chain management services and to sell a total of approximately $4.8 million of inventory to ETI over the
term of the Supply Agreement.

The Company provides healthcare professionals with innovative product solutions that encompass a high
level of patient care and prevention of cross infection. The Company intends to maintain this business by
continually improving its existing capabilities and simultaneously developing and acquiring new business
opportunities while maintaining its customer focus and providing the highest levels of customer support. The
Company seeks to increase sales and earnings from its infection control business by completing strategic
acquisitions, enhancing marketing and distribution efforts both domestically and internationally, introducing new
products, increasing direct sales representation, employing tele-sales agents for added sales coverage, and
capitalizing on low-cost manufacturing opportunities in the Dominican Republic and China.
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Sales Growth

The Company has increased its consolidated net revenues from approximately $81.0 million in 2001 to
$134.5 million in 2005. This growth has resulted from acquisitions and through double-digit internal growth. Since
January 2001, the Company has completed approximately six acquisitions, including:

e the post-surgical clean-up product line and the patient and medical equipment drape product lines of Deka
Medical, Inc.;

the assets of MICROBasix, LLC;

the surgical drape product line of Gyrus ENT, LLC;

the multi-line disposable medical device products of Plasco, Inc.;

a small line of orthopedic products of Ortho/Plast, Inc.; and

most recently, certain businesses of International Medical Products, B.V. and affiliates.

At the same time that the Company has pursued this acquisition strategy, the Company has generated
internal growth by making product improvements and product line extensions to its existing product families. The
Company has also made significant investments in all parts of its business, particularly in its sales and marketing
infrastructure to increase market awareness of the Company’s branded product lines and to further position the
Company as a market leader in the customized infection control market. The Company has also focused its efforts
on expanding and developing its relationships with its customers and other end users which include certain of the
leading original equipment manufacturers (“OEM’s”) and supply service companies in the world.

While continued investment in promoting the Company’s brand has offset gains from revenue growth in
the short term, the Company believes that its branded sales and marketing infrastructure will aid the Company in
maintaining and increasing revenues and thereby contribute to the Company’s operating income. The Company also
believes that additional internal growth in net revenues can be achieved through increased focus on the design and
release of new products, targeted sales efforts in key surgical procedures and departments within the hospital and
outpatient surgical settings, continued relationship building with major OEM’s, and an increased international
presence stemming from the Company’s European manufacturing and distribution center in the Netherlands and an
increased direct branded presence in other parts of Europe. The Company also expects to continue to pursue
acquisitions that are accretive to earnings and shareholder value over the long-term. In the absence of such
acquisition opportunities, the Company will use its cash flow to reduce indebtedness or, when appropriate, to
repurchase shares of the Company’s stock pursuant to its share repurchase program.

Operating Performance

The Company operates in an environment where it is necessary to realize cost reduction opportunities to
offset continued competitive pricing and other margin pressures. In spite of raw material price increases resulting
from fluctuating petroleum prices, the weakening of the US dollar in relation to the Dominican peso, price pressures
related to certain of the Company’s OEM relationships and changes in the Company’s sales mix, the Company has
been able to substantially maintain its gross margin at approximately 39 percent in 2005 and 2004. The Company
has done so by leveraging its low-cost offshore manufacturing capabilities and its other sourcing capabilities and
relationships in China where these capabilities and relationships are considered advantageous. The Company has
also maintained its margins through targeted capital investment for productivity and efficiency improvements and
manufacturing cost reductions resulting from facility and plant rationalization and consolidation. For example,
during 2004, the Company either consolidated into its Tyler, Texas facility or transferred offshore the operations of
its former Athens, Texas facility. Additionally, during 2005, the Company consolidated its manufacturing
operations acquired in the November 2003 Plasco transaction from Gurnee, Illinois to its facilities in the Dominican
Republic. These consolidations resulted in substantial cost savings and have helped to mitigate pressures from
increases in raw material prices and foreign currency pressures related to the Dominican peso in 2005. The
Company continuously looks for continued savings from facility consolidations and other process improvements at
each of its facilities.

Since 2003, the Company’s selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of consolidated net

revenues have improved from approximately 31.7 percent in 2003 to approximately 31.2 percent in 2004 and to 30.1
percent in 2005. The Company attributes this improvement over the past three years to increased leverage on higher
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revenues and its general and administrative cost cutting and control efforts which have offset increases in
distribution costs and sales and marketing expenses. In terms of absolute dollars, the Company attributes the
increase in its total selling, general and administrative expenses from 2003 to 2005 primarily to higher variable
selling and distribution costs resulting from increased revenues and to its investment during 2005 in the selling,
general and administrative infrastructure of its Netherlands operations. Since 2003, the Company has also made a
considerable investment in its sales and market infrastructure in an effort to promote the Company’s branded market
presence in the United States. Additionally, the Company has experienced increases in distribution costs,
particularly in 2005, as a result of increased freight and other expenses associated with rising petroleum prices.

The Company’s research and development expenses have been modest at one percent or less of
consolidated net revenues in 2003, 2004 and 2005. A significant component of the Company’s future business plan
focuses on internal growth, much of which is expected to be generated through new product development and
product line extensions. The Company expects that its research and development expenses will increase in the
future as the Company invests in additional internal research and development expertise and as it pursues expanded
research and development activities.

The Company’s amortization of intangibles in 2004 and 2005 has been approximately $1 million. The
Company expects that its amortization expense in 2006 will be consistent with 2005. As previously incurred patent
and other intangibles become fully amortized, they will be replaced by the Company’s future investments to seek
patent and trademark protection for its proprietary products resulting from the Company’s expended research and
development efforts.

Cash Flows

Over the past three years, the Company has reduced its indebtedness from $7.4 million at December 31,
2002 to $1.7 million at December 31, 2005, while completing three different acquisition transactions, including the
Company’s most recent IMP acquisition in May 2004 for approximately $9.6 millicn. The Company attributes its
improved cash flows in 2005 to its sound working capital management activities, primarily its inventory
management, to relatively modest capital expenditures in 2005 of approximately $1.1 million, and the cash savings
related to the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards which eliminate the payment of substantially all Federal
income taxes on the Company’s earnings until these carryforwards are fully utilized. Absent the effect of any
potential future acquisitions, capital expenditures in 2006 are expected to increase over its 2005 capital expenditures
of approximately $1.1 million. The Company anticipates future capital improvements to certain of its
manufacturing facilities and an increase in capital expenditures related to the Company’s information technology
infrastructure both domestically and abroad. As of March 10, 2006, the Company had repaid all outstanding
borrowings under its revolving credit facility.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Overview. Consolidated net revenues were $134.5 million in 2003, representing a 6.2 percent increase as
compared to 2004, primarily as a result of revenues of $14.0 million from the IMP acquisition which was completed
on May 28, 2004, and internal growth in the Company’s healthcare sales of approximately 4.2 percent. OTI division
revenues in 2005 decreased by approximately $2.9 million, or 38.7 percent, from 2004. Gross margins in 2005 were
39.1 percent, versus 39.2 percent in 2004. Income from operations in 2005 increased by $1.7 million, or 19.6
percent, from 2004. Excluding losses and gains on dispositions of property and equipment in 2005 and 2004 of
($139,000) and $215,000, respectively, income from operations in 2005 increased by $2.0 million, or 24.4 percent,
over 2004. Net income for 2005 was $14.5 million, including foreign currency exchange losses of $408,000, and a
net deferred income tax benefit of $4.7 million related primarily to the reduction in the Company’s valuation
allowance for its deferred tax assets and the offsetting current state, foreign and Federal alternative minimum
income tax expense for 2005. The Company’s cash flow from operations in 2005 was $9.7 million which, together
with proceeds from sales of property and equipment and proceeds from common stock issuances and option
exercises, was used to fund capital expenditures of $1.1 million and to pay down approximately $3.8 million of
long-term debt during the year. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents increased by $5.8 million during 2005
and totaled approximately $14.8 million at December 31, 2005.
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Net Revenues. Consolidated net revenues in 2005 were $134.5 million, an increase of $7.9 million or 6.2
percent over the $126.6 million of net revenues reported in 2004.

For 2005, Microtek's net revenues totaled $129.9 million, an increase of $10.7 million, or 9.0 percent, over
net revenues of $119.2 million reported in 2004. Included in Microtek's net revenues for 2005 are $14.0 million in
revenues associated with the IMP acquisition, as compared to $7.9 million in 2004. The following table depicts
Microtek's domestic and international revenues and the relative percentage of each to Microtek's total revenues in
2005 and 2004 (in millions):

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
Domestic $ 971 74 .8% $ 955 80.1%
International 32.8 252% 237 19.9%
Total $ 1299 100.0% $.1192 100.0%

Microtek's domestic revenues are generated through two primary channels or customer categories, hospital
branded and contract manufacturing (commonly referred to as OEM). Domestic branded revenues were 64.8
percent and OEM revenues were 35.2 percent of Microtek’s total domestic revenues in 2005 as compared to 66.2
percent and 33.8 percent, respectively, in 2004. Included in the Company’s OEM revenues are sales of product to
“non-branded” or private label customers. Previously, sales of the Company’s branded products to custom
procedure tray assemblers (also known as Kitpackers) were included in the Company’s OEM channel revenues.
Beginning January 1, 2005, kitpacker revenues are not included in the Company’s domestic branded channel so that
the Company’s domestic branded sales force can better monitor and promote end user awareness of and loyalty to
the Company’s products which are included in these kits. Revenues attributable to the domestic branded and OEM
changes in 2004 have been restated to conform to channel classification used in 2005.

Microtek’s domestic branded revenues in 2005 were relatively consistent with 2004 amounts. The lack of
growth in 2005 is the result of the consolidation of two large kit companies during 2004 and pricing and other
competitive pressures experienced by the Company in 2005. Microtek’s OEM revenues in 2005 increased by $1.9
million, or 5.9 percent, to $34.2 million from $32.3 million in 2004. Increases in OEM revenues resulted primarily
from growth in the Company's private label revenues which was partially offset by lower trilaminate converting and
woundcare revenues which declined as a result of customer decisions to move this business in-house or to another
offshore provider.

Microtek's international revenues, which accounted for 25.2 percent of Microtek’s 2005 net revenues, grew
by $9.1 million, or 38.6 percent, over 2004 as a result of internal growth of approximately $3.1 million, or 19.6
percent, and a $6.0 million increase in revenues from the IMP acquisition completed in May 2004.

OTT's net revenues were $4.5 million in 2005 and consisted primarily of sales of finished goods inventories
to ETI and royalties under the license agreement of $300,000. OTI’s net revenues in 2004 were $7.4 million,
including approximately $1.2 in sales of certain OREX raw materials to a related party in September 2004 and
royalties under the license agreement of $75,000. As discussed above, in September 2004, the Company licensed its
OREX degradable products and disposal technologies for nuclear and other specified applications to a third party
and entered into an exclusive three-year Supply Agreement for certain sourcing and supply chain management
services. Subsequent to the signing of the License Agreement, the Company expects that OTT division revenues will
consist of license royalties totaling $75,000 per quarter through September 2007 and sales of finished goods
inventories to a third party, including a pro rata share of management fee income, aggregating approximately $7.5
million over the three-year term of the Supply Agreement.

Gross Margins. Consolidated gross margins in 2005 were 39.1 percent, as compared with 39.2 percent for
2004. Microtek's gross margin was approximately 39.1 percent in 2005 versus 39.8 percent in 2004. OTI’s gross
margin in 2005 was 37.9 percent, as compared to 28.4 percent in 2004. The Company attributes its ability to
maintain consolidated gross margins of approximately 39 percent to cost control and other manufacturing
improvements designed to improve gross margins which substantially offset the impact of higher raw material costs
resulting from rising petroleum prices and the weakening of the US dollar in relation to the Dominican peso in 2005.
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Following the licensing of the OREX technology in September 2004, OTI division revenues, consisting of sales of
finished goods inventories, including a pro rata share of management fee income, and license royalties, are expected
to generate gross margins in excess of 36 percent and are not expected to have a material dilutive impact on the
Company’s consolidated gross margins.

Operating Expenses. Consolidated operating expenses as a percentage of net revenues in 2005 were 31.5
percent, as compared to 32.7 percent in 2004. Microtek's operating expenses, which include corporate
administrative expenses, as a percentage of net revenues, for 2005 were 32.3 percent versus 33 .4 percent in 2004. In
absolute dollar amounts, Microtek's operating expenses increased in 2005 by $2.2 million to $41.9 million. OTT's
operating expenses in 2005 decreased by $1.1 million, or 68.0 percent, from 2004.

Consolidated selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses were $40.5 million or 30.1 percent of
net revenues in 2005, versus $39.5 million or 31.2 percent of net revenues for 2004.

In 2003, Microtek’s SG&A expenses totaled approximately $40.2 million, or 31.0 percent of Microtek’s
net revenues, as compared to $38.2 million, or 32.0 percent of net revenues, in 2004. Contributing to the overall
increase in the absolute dollar amount of Microtek’s SG&A expenses was an increase SG&A expenses related to the
IMP businesses of $2.0 million. Excluding expenses associated with the IMP businesses, Microtek’s total SG&A
expenses increased by approximately $40,000 principally as a result of a $348,000 increase in distribution costs and
a $387.,000 increase in sales and marketing expenses which were offset by an $895,000 decrease in general and
administrative expenses. The Company attributes the increases in its distribution and sales and marketing expenses
in 2005 primarily to the variable nature of a significant portion of these costs and the related increase in net revenues
in 2005 and, with respect to distribution expenses, the impact of rising petroleum prices in 2005 on the Company’s
freight and other similar distribution expenses. Microtek’s general and administrative expenses in 2005 declined
from 2004 primarily as a result of various administrative cost control and cost elimination measures, including, most
significantly, the closure of the Company’s Plasco manufacturing facilities in Gurnee, Illinois in the second quarter
of 2005 which eliminated the related administrative cost infrastructure in the last six months of 2005.

Following the ETI transaction in September 2004, the Company has substantially reduced the SG&A
expenses of its OTI division in 2005 and for all future periods. During 2005, SG&A expenses for the OTI division
consisted primarily of franchise taxes, depreciation expense and miscellaneous administrative costs and totaled
$309,000. In 2004, the OTI division’s SG&A expenses, consisting primarily of sales commissions, warehousing
and distribution expenses and other administrative costs, totaled approximately $1.3 million.

Consolidated research and development expenses were $810,000 in 2005 as compared to $1,048,000 in
2004. The net decrease in research and development expenses is a result of a $173,000 decrease in Microtek's
research and development expenses and a $65,000 decrease in OTI's research and development expenses. The
decline in consolidated research and development expenses in 2005 is the result of a more focused research and
development program and the Company’s continued cost cutting efforts during 2005. Microtek’s future research
and development activities will be specifically focused on new product development, as well as product
enhancements and product line extensions. There are no new future research and development projects planned for
the Company’s OTI division. The OTI division will continue to incur expenses related to maintenance and
protection of OTI’s intellectual property.

Consolidated amortization of intangibles in 2005 was $961,000 and increased over amortization expense in
2004 of $809,000 as a result of a full year of amortization expense related to the intangibles acquired in the IMP
acquisition (increase over 2004 of $108,000) and a $44,000 increase in Microtek’s amortization expense related
primarily to patent and other intangible amortization. As part of the licensing of the OREX technology in
September 2004, the Company retained ownership of all of its intangible assets, including patent acquisition costs,
related to its OREX products and processing technology. Consequently, this licensing agreement is not expected to
have an impact on amortization of intangibles in future periods.

Income from Operations. Consolidated income from operations for 2005 was $10.1 million, versus $8.4
million in 2004, an increase in 19.6 percent. Excluding disposition losses of $139,000 in 2005 related to the closure
of the Company’s manufacturing facilities in Gurnee, Illinois and the transition of those operations to the Dominican
Republic and gains of $215,000 in 2004 related to dispositions of property and equipment, the Company’s
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consolidated income from operations in 2005 increased by $2.0 million, or 24.4 percent, over 2004. Microtek's
income from operations in 2005 of $8.9 million increased by approximately $1.2 million or 15.2 percent, from
income from operations in 2004 of $7.7 million. The Company’s OTI division reported income from operations in
2005 of $1.2 million, a 66.1 percent improvement over OTI’s income from operations of $732,000 in 2004.

Interest Expense and Interest Income. Consolidated interest expense was $227,000 in 2005, as
compared to $322,000 in 2004. The decrease in consolidated interest expense in 2005 resulted primarily from lower
average borrowings under the Company’s Credit Agreement. Interest income of $189,000 in 2005 increased from
$57,000 in 2004 as a result of higher interest rates applicable to the Company’s cash and cash equivalents and
interest income attributable to the promissory note from Global Resources, Inc. related to the September 2004 sales
of certain raw material inventories.

Other Income/Expense, Net. Other income includes the Company’s equity in earnings of its investee,
Global Resources, Inc., which totaled $202,000 and $128,000 in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Also included in
other income and expense are foreign currency exchange gains and losses resulting from the translation of certain
intercompany transactions of the Company’s Netherlands subsidiaries which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of those subsidiaries. In 2005, the Company’s recorded foreign currency exchange
losses of $408,000, as compared to foreign currency exchange gains of approximately $850,000 in 2004, The
Company believes that changes made to the structure of these intercompany transactions during the second quarter
of 2005 will significantly minimize the occurrence of these foreign currency exchange losses in future period.

Income Taxes. The Company's provision for income taxes in 2005 reflects a total net income tax benefit
of $4.7 million, consisting of a $5.3 million net deferred income tax benefit due primarily to the decrease in the
Company’s valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, and the offsetting state and foreign current income tax
expense of $493,000. Additionally, in 2005, the Company incurred tax expense of approximately $105,000 related
to alternative minimum taxes for Federal purposes. In 2004, the Company’s provision for income taxes reflected a
total net income tax benefit of $764.,000, consisting of a $1.7 million net deferred income tax benefit due primarily
to the decrease in the Company's valuation allowance associated with its deferred tax assets, and the offsetting state
and foreign current income tax expense of $760,000 and alternative minimum taxes for Federal purposes of
$166,000.

Net Income. The resulting net income for 2005 was $14.5 million, or $0.33 per basic and diluted share.
This compares to the net income of $9.9 million, or $0.23 and $0.22 per basic and diluted share, respectively,
reported for 2004.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003

Overview. Consolidated net revenues were $126.6 million in 2004, representing a 28.3 percent increase as
compared to 2003 primarily as a result of revenues of $9.4 million from the Plasco division which was acquired in
November 2003, revenues of $7.9 million associated with the businesses acquired from IMP on May 28, 2004 and
internal growth in the Company’s healthcare sales of approximately 10.7 percent. OTI division revenues in 2004
increased by approximately $1.9 million, or 34.3 percent, over 2003. Gross margins in 2004 were 39.2 percent,
versus 39.7 percent in 2003. Income from operations in 2004 increased by $882,000 over 2003. Excluding gains on
dispositions of property and equipment in 2004 and 2003 of $215,000 and $982,000, respectively, income from
operations in 2004 increased by $1.6 million over 2003. Net income for 2004 was $9.9 million, including foreign
currency exchange gains of $850,000, and a net deferred income tax benefit of $764,000 related primarily to the
reduction in the Company’s valuation allowance for its deferred tax assets and the offsetting current state, foreign
and Federal alternative minimum income tax expense for 2004. The Company’s cash flow from operations in 2004
was $12.1 million which, together with proceeds from sales of property and equipment and proceeds from common
stock issuances and option exercises, was used to fund capital expenditures of $2.1 million, to finance the IMP and
OrthoPlast acquisitions totaling $9.6 million and $419,000, respectively, and to pay down approximately $3.1
million of debt during the year.

Net Revenues, Consolidated net revenues in 2004 were $126.6 million, an increase of $27.9 million or
28.3 percent over the $98.7 million of net revenues reported in 2003.
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For 2004, Microtek's net revenues totaled $119.2 million, an increase of $26.0 million or 27.9 percent over
net revenues of $93.2 million reported in 2003. Included in Microtek's net revenues for 2004 are $9.4 million in
revenues of Microtek's Plasco division (as compared to $1.1 million in Plasco division revenues in 2003) and $7.9
million in revenues associated with the IMP acquisition. The following table depicts Microtek's domestic and
international revenues and the relative percentage of each to Microtek's total revenues in 2004 and 2003 (in
millions):

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
Domestic $ 955 80.1% $ 799 85.8%
International 237 19.9% _ 133 142%
Total $1192 100.0% $ 932 100.0%

Microtek's domestic revenues are generated through two primary channels or customer categories, domestic
branded and contract manufacturing (commonly referred to as OEM). Domestic branded revenues were 66.2
percent and OEM revenues were 33.8 percent of Microtek’s total domestic revenues in 2004 as compared to 69.3
percent and 30.7 percent, respectively, in 2003. As indicated above with respect to the Company’s net revenues in
2005 versus 2004, sales of the Company’s branded products to custom procedure tray assemblers (also known as
kitpackers) were previously included in the Company’s OEM channel revenues. Beginning January 1, 2005,
kitpacker revenues are not included in the Company’s domestic branded channel so that the Company’s domestic
branded sales force can better monitor and promote end user awareness of and loyalty to the Company’s products
which are included in these kits. Revenues attributable to the domestic branded and OEM changes in 2004 and 2003
have been restated to conform to channel classification used in 2005.

Microtek’s domestic branded revenues in 2004 increased by $7.8 million, or 14.1 percent, to $63.2 million
from $55.4 million in 2003. A significant contributor to this growth in 2004 was the Company's CleanOp product
line which demonstrated growth of approximately 30 percent over 2003 as the result of continued market
penetration and focused sales and marketing efforts related to this product line. Microtek's other domestic branded
revenues, excluding safety products, demonstrated internal growth in 2004 of approximately 6.9 percent, led by
strong revenue contribution from Microtek’s Venodyne product line in 2004 as compared to 2003. Additionally,
revenues from the Plasco division contributed $5.4 million to Microtek's domestic branded revenues in 2004, as
compared to $729,000 in 2003. Partially offsetting these increases was a decline in safety product revenues of
$527,000 due primarily to the sale of a portion of this product line in September 2003. Microtek’s OEM revenues in
2004 increased by $7.8 million, or 31.9 percent, to $32.3 million from $24.5 million in 2003. Increases in OEM
revenues resulted primarily from growth in the Company's private label revenues and from $3.8 million in OEM
revenues from the recently acquired Plasco division, versus $402,000 in Plasco division revenues in 2003.

Microtek's international revenues, which accounted for 19.9 percent of Microtek’s 2004 net revenues, grew
by $10.4 million, or more than 78 percent, over 2003 as a result of internal growth of approximately $2.5 million, or
18.7 percent, and approximately $7.9 million in revenues related to the IMP acquisition completed in May 2004.

OTT's net revenues were $7.4 million in 2004, $1.9 million greater than net revenues in 2003, including
increased sales to the nuclear industry and approximately $1.2 in sales of certain OREX raw materials to a related
party in September 2004. The Company's commercialization efforts and relationships within the nuclear power
industry continued to strengthen during 2004. In September 2004, the Company licensed its OREX degradable
products and disposal technologies for nuclear and other specified applications to a third party and entered into an
exclusive three-year Supply Agreement for certain sourcing and supply chain management services.

Gross Margins. Consolidated gross margins in 2004 were 39.2 percent, as compared with 39.7 percent for
2003. Microtek's gross margin was approximately 39.8 percent in 2004 versus 40.4 percent in 2003. The Company
attributes the 0.6 percentage point decrease in Microtek’s gross margins to its lower margin CleanOp and
international businesses, excluding IMP, which were significant contributors to net revenue growth in 2004 and to
raw material pricing pressures which were partially offset by cost control and other manufacturing improvements
designed to improve gross margins. OTI’s gross margin in 2004 was 28.4 percent, as compared to 28.7 percent in
2003.
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Operating Expenses. Consolidated operating expenses as a percentage of net revenues in 2004 were 32.7
percent, as compared to 33.1 percent in 2003. Microtek's operating expenses, which include corporate
administrative expenses, as a percentage of net revenues, for 2004 were 33.4 percent versus 33.2 percent in 2003. In
absolute dollar amounts, Microtek's operating expenses increased in 2004 by $8.8 million to $39.8 million. OTI's
operating expenses in 2004 decreased by $123,000, or 7.2 percent, from 2003.

Consolidated SG&A expenses were $39.5 million or 31.2 percent of net revenues in 2004, versus $31.3
million or 31.7 percent of net revenues for 2003. In 2004, Microtek’s SG&A expenses totaled approximately $38.2
million, or 32.0 percent of Microtek’s net revenues, as compared to $29.9 million, or 32.1 percent of net revenues, in
2003. Contributing to the overall increase in the absolute dollar amount of Microtek’s SG&A expenses were SG&A
expenses related to the recent Plasco and IMP acquisitions of $2.8 million and $1.8 million, respectively. SG&A
expenses attributable to the Plasco acquisition in 2003 were approximately $470,000. Excluding expenses associated
with recent acquisitions, Microtek’s SG&A expenses increased by approximately $4.2 million principally as a result
of a $2.1 million increase in distribution costs and a $2.4 million increase in sales and marketing expenses. The
Company attributes the increases in its distribution and sales and marketing expenses in 2004 primarily to the
variable nature of a significant portion of these costs and the related increase in net revenues in 2004. Additionally,
during 2004, the Company made significant planned investments in its branded sales and marketing infrastructure,
principally salaries and product promotions, including a comprehensive revision of the Company’s marketing
literature and other materials designed to increase brand awareness and recognition. Microtek’s general and
administrative expenses in 2004 declined slightly from 2003 as various administrative cost control measures more
than offset higher legal and accounting costs associated primarily with the Company’s Sarbanes-Oxley compliance
programs and initiatives. SG&A expenses for OTI division in 2004 consisted primarily of sales commissions,
warehousing and distribution expenses and other administrative costs that totaled approximately $1.3 million in both
2004 and 2003.

Consolidated research and development expenses were $1,048,000 in 2004 as compared to $940,000 in
2003. The net increase in research and development expenses is a result of a $250,000 increase in Microtek's
research and development expenses offset by a $142,000 decrease in OTI's research and development expenses.
During 2004, Microtek continued the expansion of its product development program which included numerous
product enhancements and new product introductions for 2004 and 2005. The reduction in OTI's product
development costs reflects the division's continued cost cutting efforts during 2004 and its more narrow focus on
new market opportunities for its OREX Degradable products within the nuclear industry.

Consolidated amortization of intangibles in 2004 was $809.000 and increased over amortization expense in
2003 of $440,000 as a result of amortization of the intangibles acquired in the IMP transaction of approximately
$186,000, a full year of amortization expense recorded with respect to OREX patent issuance costs incurred in
September 2003 and Plasco intangibles acquired in November 2003 (for a combined impact of approximately
$80.,000) and a $103,000 increase in amortization expense related to Microtek’s intangibles, primarily intangibles
acquired as a result of the OrthoPlast transaction and patent and other intangible costs incurred by Microtek in 2004.

Income from Operations. Consolidated income from operations for 2004 was $8.4 million, versus $7.6
million in 2003. Excluding gains resulting from dispositions of property and equipment of $215,000 in 2004 and
$982,000 in 2003, the Company’s consolidated income from operations in 2004 increased by $1.6 million, or 25.1
percent, over 2003. Microtek's income from operations in 2004 of $7.7 million was consistent with its income from
operations in 2003. Included in Microtek’s income from operations in 2003 was a gain of $982,000 on the sale of
certain non-strategic assets. Included in Microtek’s income from operations in 2004 was $1.5 million in income
from operations of its newly acquired IMP businesses. The Company’s OTI division reported income from
operations in 2004 of $732,000 versus an operating loss of $118,000 in 2003. Included in the OTI division’s income
from operations in 2004 were gains on the disposition of certain property and equipment of approximately $215,000.

Interest Expense and Interest Income. Consolidated interest expense was $322,000 in 2004 as compared
to $263,000 in 2003. The increase in interest expense of $59,000 in 2004 is a result higher average interest rates and
higher average borrowings on the Company's line of credit facility during 2004, primarily due to the financing of the
IMP acquisition in May 2004. In 2004, interest income totaled $57,000, a decrease of $27,000 from $84,000 in
2003, due to lower average interest rates and lower average cash and cash equivalent balances during 2004.

26




Other Income/Expense, Net. Other income includes the Company’s equity in earnings of its investee,
Global Resources, Inc., which totaled $128,000 and $85,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Also included in other
income in 2004 are foreign currency exchange gains of approximately $850,000 resulting from the translation of
certain intercompany transactions of the Company’s Netherlands subsidiaries which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of those subsidiaries.

Income Taxes. The Company's provision for income taxes in 2004 reflects a net income tax benefit of
$764.000, consisting of a $1.7 million non-cash deferred income tax benefit due primarily to the decrease in the
Company's valuation allowance associated with its deferred tax assets, and the offsetting state and foreign income
tax expense of $760,000. Additionally, in 2004, the Company incurred tax expense of approximately $166,000
related to alternative minimum taxes for Federal purposes. The Company's provision for income taxes in 2003
reflects a net income tax benefit of $8.5 million comprised of an $8.8 million non-cash deferred income tax benefit
principally from the decrease of the Company's valuation allowance associated with its deferred tax assets and the
offsetting state and foreign income tax expense of $300,000.

Net Income. The resulting net income for 2004 was $9.9 million, or $0.23 and $0.22 per basic and diluted
share, respectively. This compares to the net income of $16.0 million, or $0.38 and $0.37 per basic and diluted
share, respectively, reported for 2003. Excluding the non-cash deferred income tax benefits in 2004 and 2003 and
the disposition gains in 2004 and 2003 of $215,000 and $982 000, respectively, the Company's net income in 2004
was $8.0 million, or $0.19 and $0.18 per basic and diluted share, respectively, reflecting a more than 25 percent
improvement over net income of $6.2 million or $0.15 and $0.14 per basic and diluted share, respectively, for 2003.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
As of December 31, 2005, the Company's cash and cash equivalents totaled $14.8 million compared to $9.0
million at December 31, 2004. The following are highlights of the Company's cash flow activity in 2005 and 2004

(in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004
Cash provided by operating activities $9.702 $ 12,140
Cash used in investing activities (897) (11,515)
Cash used in by financing activities (2,748) (641)

During 2005, the Company utilized cash to reduce borrowings under its line of credit agreement, to make
scheduled debt repayments related to previous acquisitions, capital lease and other debt obligations, and to purchase
property and equipment.

Cash provided by operating activities in 2005 totaled $9.7 million and resulted from improved profitability
and working capital management, particularly inventories which decreased by $1.5 million, and the cash savings
related to the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards which eliminate the payment of substantially all Federal
income taxes on the Company’s earnings until these carryforwards are fully utilized. Uses of operating cash in 2005
included increases in accounts receivable and prepaid expenses and other assets and decreases in accounts payable,
accrued compensation, and other accrued liabilities. During 2005, cash used in investing activities of $897,000
included purchases of capital property and equipment of approximately $1.1 million, offset by $215,000 in proceeds
from the sales of property and equipment. Capital additions in 2005 included machinery and equipment and
computer equipment. Cash used in financing activities in 2005 was $2.7 million and resulted from net repayments
under the Company’s line of credit agreement of $3.3 million, repayments of notes payable, including capital lease
obligations, of $491,000, and treasury stock repurchases of $147,000, which were offset by proceeds from the
exercise of stock options and other issuances of common stock of approximately $1.1 million. Additionally, in
2005, the Company’s bank overdraft increased by $93,000.

During 2004, the Company utilized cash to finance its IMP and OrthoPlast acquisitions, to purchase

property and equipment, to make scheduled debt repayments related to previous acquisitions, and to make payments
under capital lease and other debt obligations.
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Cash provided by operating activities in 2004 totaled $12.1 million and resulted from improved
profitability and working capital management, including increases in prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued
compensation, and other accrued liabilities and decreases in inventories offset by increases in accounts receivable.
During 2004, cash used in investing activities of $11.5 million included purchases of capital property and equipment
of $2.1 million and cash payments related to the IMP and OrthoPlast acquisitions of $9.6 million and $419,000,
respectively. Offsetting these payments were proceeds from the sales of property and equipment of $600,000.
Capital additions in 2004 included machinery and equipment, computer equipment and building and leasehold
improvements. Cash used in financing activities in 2004 was $641,000 and resulted from repayments under the
Company’s line of credit agreement of $2.6 million, repayments of notes payable, including capital lease
obligations, of $463,000 which were offset by proceeds from the exercise of stock options and other issuances of
common stock of $1.7 million. Additionally, in 2004, the Company’s bank overdraft increased by $797 000.

The Company maintains a credit agreement (as amended to date, the "Credit Agreement") with JP Morgan
Chase Bank (the "Bank"), consisting of a $23.5 million revolving credit facility, maturing on June 30, 2008.
Borrowing availability under the revolving credit facility is based on the lesser of (i) a percentage of eligible
accounts receivable and inventory or (ii) $23.5 million, less any outstanding letters of credit issued under the Credit
Agreement. Borrowing availability under the revolving facility at December 31, 2005 totaled $15.4 million.
Revolving credit borrowings bear interest at a floating rate approximating the Bank's prime rate plus an interest
margin (7.5 percent at December 31, 2005). Outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility were $1.2
million and $4.5 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. As of March 10, 2006, the Company had
repaid all outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility and had a total borrowing availability of $15.1
million. The Credit Agreement provides for the issuance of up to $1.0 million in letters of credit. There were no
outstanding letters of credit at December 31, 2005 or 2004. The Credit Agreement provides for a fee of 0.375% per
annum on the unused commitment, an annual collateral monitoring fee of $35,000, and an outstanding letter of
credit fee of 2.0% per annum. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement are collateralized by the Company's
accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, the Company's stock of its subsidiaries and certain of the Company's
plants and offices. The Credit Agreement contains certain restrictive covenants, including the maintenance of
certain financial ratios and earnings, and limitations on acquisitions, dispositions, capital expenditures and additional
indebtedness. The Company also is not permitted to pay any dividends.

Based on its current business plan, the Company currently expects that cash equivalents and short term
investments on hand, the Company's existing credit facility and funds budgeted to be generated from operations will
be adequate to meet its liquidity and capital requirements through 2006. However, currently unforeseen future
developments, potential acquisitions and increased working capital requirements may require additional debt
financing or issuances of common stock in 2006 and subsequent years.

Inflation. Inflation has not had a material effect on the Company's operations. If inflation increases, the
Company will attempt to increase its prices or control its other expenses to offset its increased expenses. No
assurance can be given, however, that the Company will be able to adequately increase its prices or control its other
expenses in response to inflation.

Foreign Currency Translation. The financial position and results of operations of the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and the Netherlands are measured using the foreign subsidiary’s local currency
as the functional currency. Revenues and expenses of such subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at average
exchange rates prevailing during the period. Assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange on the
balance sheet date. The resulting translation gain and loss adjustments are recorded directly as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity. Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of applicable taxes, resulted in a
loss of $1,536,000 in 2005 and gains of $497,000 and $201,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Transaction gains and losses that arise from exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated in a
currency other than the subsidiary’s functional currency are included in the results of operations as incurred. The
translation of certain transactions of the Company’s Netherlands subsidiaries which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of those subsidiaries resulted in foreign currency exchange losses of $408,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2005 and foreign currency exchange gains for the year ended December 31, 2004 of
$850,000. The effect of foreign currency transactions was not material to the Company’s results of operations in
2003.
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Currency translations and transactions that are billed and paid in foreign currencies could be adversely
affected in the future by the relationship of the U.S. Dollar with foreign currencies.

Contractual Obligations
Known contractual obligations of the Company existing as of December 31, 2005, including anticipated

interest expense at approximate rates existing at December 31, 2005, and their respective estimated due dates are as
follows (in thousands):

Total 2006 2007-2009 2010-2012 After 2012
Borrowings under credit agreement * $ 1,231 $ 1231 $ - $ - 8
Acquisition and other notes payable ) 300 $ 300 $ - $ - $
Capital leases $ 149 $ 130 $ 19 $ -3
Operating leases $ 16995 $ 2413 $ 6,279 $ 4773 $
Purchase obligations $ 9949 $ 9949 $ - $ - %

* As of March 10, 2006, the Company had repaid all outstanding borrowings under its revolving credit facility.
Therefore, the borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2005 in the table above have been reflected as 2006
obligations, although the contractual term of the revolving credit facility extends to June 30, 2008.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not have any off-balance sheets arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have
a current or future effect on the Company's financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses,
results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that are material to investors.

Critical Accounting Policies

While the listing below is not inclusive of all of the Company's accounting policies, the Company's
management believes that the following policies are those which are most critical and embody the most significant
management judgments and the uncertainties affecting their application and the likelihood that materially different
amounts would be reported under different conditions or using different assumptions. These critical policies are:

Sales Returns and Other Allowances and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The preparation of financial
statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Specifically, management must make estimates of potential
future product returns related to current period product revenues. The Company's sales arrangements do not
generally include acceptance provisions or clauses. Additionally, the Company does not typically grant its
distributors or other customers price protection rights or rights to return products bought, other than normal and
customary rights of return for defects in materials or workmanship, and is not obligated to accept product returns for
any other reason. Actual returns have historically not been significant. Management analyzes historical returns,
current economic trends and changes in customer demand when evaluating the adequacy of its sales returns and
other allowances.

Similarly, the Company's management must make estimates of the uncollectibility of its accounts
receivables. Management specifically analyzes accounts receivable, historical bad debts, customer concentrations,
customer credit worthiness, current economic trends and changes in its customers' payment terms when evaluating
the adequacy of its allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company's accounts receivable at December 31, 2005
totaled $19.5 million, net of allowances of $1.6 million.

Inventory Valuation. The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires careful determination
of the appropriate dollar amount of the Company's inventory balances. Such amount is presented as a current asset
in the Company's balance sheet and is a direct determinant of cost of goods sold in the statement of operations and
therefore has a significant impact on the amount of net income reported in an accounting period. The basis of
accounting for inventories is cost, which is the sum of expenditures and charges, both direct and indirect, incurred to
bring the inventory quantities to their existing condition and location. The Company's inventories are stated at the
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lower of cost or market, with cost determined using the first-in, first-out ("FIFO") method, which assumes that
inventory quantities are sold in the order in which they are manufactured or purchased. The Company utilizes
standard costs as a management tool. The Company's standard cost valuation of its inventories is adjusted at regular
intervals to reflect the approximate cost of the inventory under FIFO. The determination of the indirect charges and
their allocation to the Company's work-in-process and finished goods inventories is complex and requires significant
management judgment and estimates. Material differences may result in the valuation of the Company's inventories
and in the amount and timing of the Company's cost of goods sold and resulting net income for any period if
management made different judgments or utilized different estimates.

On a periodic basis, management reviews its inventory quantities on hand for obsolescence, physical
deterioration, changes in price levels and the existence of quantities on hand which may not reasonably be expected
to be used or sold within the normal operating cycles of the Company's operations. To the extent that any of these
conditions are believed to exist or the utility of the inventory quantities in the ordinary course of business is no
longer as great as their carrying value, the carrying value of the inventory is adjusted. To the extent that this
adjustment is made during an accounting period, an expense is recorded in the Company's statement of operations,
generally in cost of goods sold. Significant management judgment is required in determining the amount of such an
adjustment. In the event that actual results differ from management's estimates or these estimates and judgments are
revised in future periods, the Company may need to record additional adjustments to the carrying value of its
inventory which could materially impact the Company's financial position and results of operation. As of
December 31, 2005, the Company's inventories totaled $31.0 million. Management believes that the Company's
inventory is carried at the lower of cost or market.

Accounting for Income Taxes. In conjunction with preparing the Company's consolidated financial
statements, management is required to estimate the Company's income tax liability in each of the jurisdictions in
which the Company operates. This process involves estimating the Company's actual current tax exposure together
with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes.
These differences result in deferred tax assets or liabilities which are reflected in the Company's consolidated
balance sheet. Management must also assess the likelihood that the Company's deferred tax assets will be used to
offset income taxes otherwise payable as a result of the Company's generation of taxable income in the future. To
the extent that management believes that recovery is not likely, a valuation allowance must be established and
reviewed in each accounting period. Increases in the valuation allowance in an accounting period require that the
Company record an expense within its tax provision in its consolidated statement of operations, which results in a
non-cash decrease in the Company's earnings. Decreases in the valuation allowance in an accounting period require
that the Company reverse previously recorded valuation allowances. Decreases in the valuation allowance result in
a corresponding benefit within the tax provision and the Company's consolidated statement of operations, which
results in a non-cash increase in the Company's earnings and masks the income tax expense the Company would
otherwise record in its results of operations.

Significant management judgment is required in determining the Company's provision for income taxes, its
deferred tax assets and liabilities, the valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets and any periodic adjustment
of the valuation allowance. At December 31, 2003, the Company has recorded a valuation allowance of $4.9
million, due to uncertainties related to the Company's ability to utilize some of its deferred tax assets, primarily
consisting of state net operating loss carryforwards, before they expire. As a result of this valuation allowance, the
Company's net deferred tax assets at December 31, 2005 totaled $22.8 million, of which $3.0 million was included
in current assets and $19.8 million was included in other long-term assets in the Company's consolidated balance
sheet.

In connection with preparing its financial statements in 2004 and 2005, the Company assessed the future
realizability of its deferred tax assets and recorded a reduction in the valuation allowance of $7.9 million in the
fourth quarter of 2004 and a total of $9.6 million during the third and fourth quarters of 2005. In making these
assessments, the Company considered, among other things, management's risk-adjusted forecast of taxable income
during the periods in which its net operating loss carryforwards can be utilized. Because changes in the Company's
valuation allowance are subject to significant judgments about unknown future events, future developments could
have a significant effect on the amount of the Company's valuation allowance and, consequently, the Company's
financial position and its results of operations.
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Valuation of Long-Lived and Intangible Assets and Goodwill. The Company assesses the impairment of
identifiable intangibles, long-lived assets and related goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable based on estimates of future undiscounted cash flows. Factors that
are considered by management in performing this assessment include, but are not limited to, the following:

e The Company's performance relative to historical or projected future operating results;
e The Company's intended use of acquired assets or the Company's strategy for its overall business; and
¢ Industry or economic trends.

In the event that the carrying value of intangibles, long-lived assets and related goodwill is determined to
be impaired, such impairment is measured using a discount rate determined by management to be commensurate
with the risk inherent in the Company's current business model. Net intangible assets, long-lived assets and
goodwill, including property and equipment, amounted to $44.0 million as of December 31, 2005.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB’) issued Interpretation No. 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB No. 51. In December 2003, the FASB
published a revision to Interpretation No. 46 (46R) to clarify some of the provisions of the original Interpretation.
This Interpretation addresses the consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities as defined in the
Interpretation. Under the new guidance, special effective date provisions apply to enterprises that have fully or
partially applied Interpretation 46 prior to issuance of this revised Interpretation. Otherwise, application of
Interpretation 46R is required in financial statements of public entities that have interests in structures that are
commonly referred to as special-purpose entities for periods ending after December 15, 2003. Application by public
entities, other than small business issuers, for all other types of variable interest entities is required in financial
statements for periods ending after March 15, 2004. The adoption of the provisions of this Interpretation for 2003,
2004 and 2005 had no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4.” SFAS No. 151 clarifies that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and
wasted materials (spoilage) should be recognized as current period charges in all circumstances. In addition, SFAS
No. 151 requires that allocation of fixed production overhead to inventory be based on the normal capacity of the
production facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June
15,2005. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of SFAS No. 151 will have on
the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” which revised SFAS No.
123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. SFAS No. 123(R) establishes accounting requirements for share-
based compensation to employees and carries forward prior guidance on accounting for awards to non-employees.
Specifically, SFAS No. 123(R) requires that public companies recognize compensation expense in an amount equal
to the fair value of the share-based payments. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective with respect to the Company beginning
with the first quarter of 2006. SFAS No. 123(R) permits companies to adopt its requirements using either the
“modified prospective” method or the “modified retrospective” method. The Company is still evaluating which
transition method to utilize. As permitted by SFAS No. 123, the Company currently accounts for share-based
payments to employees using Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25’s intrinsic value method and,
as such, recognizes no compensation expense for employee stock options. The Company’s initial adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R)’s fair value method on January 1, 2006 is not expected to have an impact on the Company’s results of
operations or overall financial position. However, the future impact of the Company’s adoption of SFAS No.
123(R) on its results of operations cannot be predicted at this time because it will depend on levels of share-based
payments granted in the future. However, had the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) in prior periods, the impact
of that standard would have approximated the impact of SFAS No. 123 as described in the disclosure of pro forma
net income and diluted net income per share in Note 1 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2005 included elsewhere in the Company’s Annual Report. SFAS No. 123(R) also
requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation expense to be reported as a financing
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cash flow activity, rather than as an operating cash flow activity as required under current literature. This
requirement will reduce net operating cash flows and increase net financing cash tlows in periods after adoption.
The Company cannot estimate what those amounts will be in the future because they depend on, among other things,
when employees exercise stock options.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets, an amendment of
APB Opinion No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions. SFAS No. 153 amends the principle that
exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged and more
broadly provides for exceptions regarding exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance.
SFAS No. 153 is effective for nonmonetary assets exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15,
2005. The Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 153 in the third quarter of 2005 did not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2005, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations (“FIN 47”). FIN 47 clarifies that a conditional asset retirement obligation, as used in SFAS No. 143,
Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in
which the timing and/or method of the settlement are conditional on a future event that may not be within the control
of the entity. Accordingly, an entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset
retirement obligation if the fair value can be reasonably estimated. FIN 47 is effective no later than fiscal years
ending after December 15, 2005. The adoption of FIN 47 in 2005 had no impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

Forward Looking Statements

Statements made in this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that state the Company's or management's intentions,
hopes, beliefs, expectations or predictions of the future are forward looking statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward looking statements include, without limitation, the
Company’s ability to maintain its business by continually improving its existing capabilities and simultaneously
developing and acquiring new business opportunities while maintaining its customer focus and providing the highest
level of customer support; the Company’s ability to increase sales and earnings from its infection control business
by completing strategic acquisitions, enhancing marketing and distribution efforts both domestically and
internationally, introducing new products, increasing direct sales representation, employing tele-sales agents for
added sales coverage, and capitalizing on low-cost manufacturing opportunities in the Dominican Republic and
China; the Company’s ability to increase sharcholder value by efficiently deploying its capital and management
resources to grow its business, reduce its operating costs and build sustainable competitive positions and to complete
acquisitions that generate attractive cash returns; the Company’s belief that it has made adequate provisions for
acquiring its raw materials and other components; the Company’s belief that it will not need to make any material
capital expenditures for environmental control facilities during the next 18 to 24 months; the Company’s belief that
its branded sales and marketing infrastructure will aid the Company in maintaining and increasing revenues and
thereby contribute to the Company’s operating income; the Company’s belief that additional internal growth in net
revenues can be achieved through increased focus on the design and release of new products, targeted sales efforts in
key surgical procedures and departments within the hospital and outpatient surgical settings, continued relationship
building with major OEM’s, and an increased international presence stemming from the Company’s new European
manufacturing and distribution centers in the Netherlands and an increased direct branded presence in other parts of
Europe; the Company’s ability to complete acquisitions that are accretive to earnings and shareholder value over the
long-term; the ability of the Company to achieve continued savings from facility consolidations and other process
improvements at its facilities; the Company’s belief that its research and development expenses will increase in the
future; the Company’s belief that its amortization of intangibles will be consistent with 2005; the Company’s belief
that its capital expenditures in 2006 are expected to increase over its 2005 capital expenditures and the anticipated
purpose of these capital expenditures; the Company’s expectation about the composition and amount of revenues to
be received by the Company’s OTI division; the Company’s belief that changes made to the structure of
intercompany transactions will significantly minimize the occurrence of foreign currency exchange losses in future
periods; the Company’s expectation about the gross margin contribution of the Company’s OTI division; the
Company’s expectation that it will eliminate substantially all of the OTI division’s selling, general and
administrative expenses in future periods; the Company's current expectation that cash equivalents and short term
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investments on hand, the Company's existing credit facility and funds budgeted to be generated from operations will
be adequate to meet its liquidity and capital requirements through 2004; the amount and estimated due dates of
contractual obligations coming due in the future, judgments by management described under "Critical Accounting
Policies" including, without limitation, the Company's ability to collect accounts receivable due from customers,
management's belief that the Company's net inventory valuation results in carrying inventory at the lower of cost or
market, management's estimates of taxable income and recoverability of the Company's deferred tax assets, and the
effect of the Company's valuation allowance for its deferred tax assets on its future operating results; the effect of
the newly issued accounting standards on the Company's consolidated financial statements described under "Newly
Issued Accounting Standards"; the Company's belief that its disclosure controls and procedures provided reasonable
assurance that the information required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted by the Company under the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the requisite time
periods; Company’s management conclusion that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2005; and, anticipated events or trends, and similar expressions concerning matters that
are not historical facts. It should be noted that the Company's actual results could differ materially from those
contained in such forward looking statements mentioned above due to adverse changes in any number of factors that
affect the Company's business including, without limitation, risks associated with low barriers to entry for
competitive products, potential erosion of profit margins, risks of technological obsolescence, reliance upon
distributors, regulatory risks, product liability and other risks described in this Annnal Report on Form 10-K. See
"Risk Factors". The Company does not undertake to update its forward looking statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company's operating results and cash flows are subject to fluctuations from changes in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates.

The financial position and results of operations of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries in the United
Kingdom and the Netherlands are measured using the foreign subsidiary’s local currency as the functional currency.
Revenues and expenses of such subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at average exchange rates prevailing
during the period. Assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange on the balance sheet date. The
resulting translation gain and loss adjustments are recorded directly as a separate coraponent of shareholders’ equity.
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of applicable taxes, resulted in a loss of $1,536,000 in 2005 and a gain
of $497,000 and $201.,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Transaction gains and losses that arise from exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated in a
currency other than the subsidiary’s functional currency are included in the results of operations as incurred. The
translation of certain transaction of the Netherlands subsidiaries which are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of those subsidiaries resulted in foreign currency exchange losses for the year ended December
31, 2005 of approximately $408,000 and foreign currency exchange gains for the year ended December 31, 2004 of
approximately $850,000. The effect of foreign currency transactions was not material to the Company’s results of
operations in 2003,

Currency translations and transactions that are billed and paid in foreign currencies could be adversely
affected in the future by the relationship of the U.S. dollar and the functional currencies of the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries with foreign currencies.

The Company is also subject to fluctuations in the value of the Dominican peso relative to the U.S. dollar.
As the value of the Dominican peso increases with respect to the U.S. dollar, the costs of the Company’s inventory
increase because the Company manufactures a material portion of its inventory at its facilities located in the
Dominican Republic. The appreciation of the Dominican peso relative to the U.S. dollar in the future could
adversely affect the Company’s operating results.

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less. As a result of the short-term nature of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, a change
of market interest rates does not materially impact interest income accruing on these investments or, consequently,
the Company’s operating results or cash flow. The Company's greatest sensitivity with respect to the general level
of U.S. interest rates relates to the effect that changes in those rates have on the Company's interest expense. At
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December 31, 2005, the Company had long-term debt totaling $1.2 million that bears interest at a floating rate
approximating the Prime Rate. Because this rate is variable, an increase or decrease in the Company's average
interest rate of ten percent, or approximately 39 basis points, would have increased or decreased interest expense by
approximately $18,000 in 2005.

The Company does not use derivative instruments for trading purposes or to hedge its market risks, and the
use of such instruments would be subject to strict approvals by the Company's senior officers. Therefore, the
Company's exposure related to such derivative instruments is not expected to be material to the Company's financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements and supplementary data are listed under Item 15(a) and filed as part
of this report on the pages indicated.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. Under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company's management, including the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial
Officer, the Company carried out an evaluation (the "Evaluation") of the effectiveness of the Company's "disclosure
controls and procedures” (as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)). Based
upon the Evaluation, the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures are effective at the reasonable assurance level as
of the end of the year for which this report is being filed to ensure that (i) information required to be disclosed by the
Company in reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and (i) such information is
accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including the Company's President and Chief
Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

The Company is committed to a continuing process of identifying, evaluating and implementing
improvements to the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure and internal controls and procedures. The
Company's management, including its President and Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer, does
not expect that the Company's controls and procedures will prevent all errors. A control system, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control
system are met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that all control issues within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations
include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of a
simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by
collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. The design of any system of controls is
also based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in any control system, misstatements due to error or violations
of law may occur and not be detected. The Company has, however, designed its disclosure controls and procedures
to provide, and believes that such controls and procedures do provide, reasonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and
forms. The disclosure in this paragraph about inherent limitations of control systems does not modify the
conclusions set forth in the immediately preceding paragraph of the Company’s President and Chief Executive
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Officer and its Chief Financial Officer concerning the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. The Company’s management is
responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s
management, including the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer, the
Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on the framework in [nternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on the Company’s evaluation under the framework in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework, the Company’s management concluded that the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2005. Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 has been audited by KPMG LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.

Changes in internal controls. There have not been any changes in the Company's internal controls over
financial reporting identified in connection with the Evaluation that occurred during the Company's quarter ending
December 31, 2005 that has materially affected or, to the knowledge of management, is reasonably likely to
materially affect the Company's internal controls.

ITEM 9B, OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
PART III
ITEM 10, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information contained or to be contained in the Company's Proxy Statement (the “Proxy Statement”)
for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the heading "Directors and Executive Officers" and “Corporate
Governance — Code of Conduct” is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information contained or to be contained in the Company's Proxy Statement under the caption
"Executive Compensation” is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information contained or to be contained in the Company's Proxy Statement under the heading
"Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information”
is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13, CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information contained or to be contained in the Company's Proxy Statement under the heading
"Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information contained or to be contained in the Company's Proxy Statement under the caption
"Relationship with Independent Public Accountants" is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) (1) Financial Statements:

The following financial statements are filed as part of this annual report.
Consolidated Financial Statements and Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for

the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity for the

years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December

31,2005, 2004 and 2003 F-7
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements F-9

(2) Financial Statement Schedule:

The following financial statement schedule is filed as part of this annual report:
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts F-28

Other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, not required or because required information is
included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(3)(@)
31

32
4.1

42

43

44

4.5

4.6

47

48

Exhibits

Articles of Incorporation of Isolyser Company, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Microtek Medical Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.3 filed with the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2004).
Specimen Certificate of Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed with the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-1, File No. 33-83474).

Shareholder Protection Rights Agreement dated as of December 20, 1996 between Isolyser Company, Inc.
and SunTrust Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-
K filed on December 20, 1996).

First Amendment to Shareholder Protection Rights Agreement dated as of October 14, 1997 between
Isolyser Company, Inc. and SunTrust Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 filed with the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on October 14, 1997).

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of May 14, 2001, between the Company and The Chase
Manhattan Bank, as Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed August 14, 2001).

Second Amendment Agreement dated as of September 30, 2002, to the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of May 14, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2002).

Fourth Amendment Agreement dated as of March 31, 2003, to the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of May 14, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company's quarterly
report on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2003).

Fifth Amendment Agreement dated as of August 7, 2003, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement,
dated as of May 14, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company's quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2003).

Sixth Amendment and Waiver Agreement dated as of November 21, 2003, to the Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement dated as of May 14, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 of the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).
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49

4.10

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

Seventh Amendment and Waiver Agreement dated as of March 4, 2004, to the Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement dated as of May 14, 200! (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2004).

Eighth Amendment and Waiver Agreement dated as of May 28, 2004 to the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement dated as of May 14, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2004).

Stock Option Plan and First Amendment to Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
filed with the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8, File No. 33-85668).

Second Amendment to Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed with the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8, File No. 33-85668).

Form of Third Amendment to Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 filed with the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 1994),

Form of Fourth Amendment to the Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.59 filed with
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 1995).

Form of Fifth Amendment to Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 filed with the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 1996).

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 filed with the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8, File No. 33-85668).

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3, filed with the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-&, File No. 33-85668).

Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into between the Company and certain of its officers and directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 filed with the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1,
File No. 33-83474).

1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-117736).

Form of Employment Agreement with the executive officers of the Company (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 filed with the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30,
2002).

Form of Incentive Stock Option pursuant to 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2004).
Form of Nonqualified Stock Option pursuant to 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30,
20043.

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (For Directors) pursuant to 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ending September 30, 2004)

Employment Agreement entered into on October 27, 2004 by and between the Company and Barbara J.
Osborne (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated October 27, 2004).

Summary of base salary adjustments for named executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.15 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Summary of compensation arrangements with directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Separation Agreement and Full Release of All Claims between the Company and Barbara J. Osborne
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended March 31, 2005).

Annual Executive Performance Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 19, 2005).

Ninth Amendment Agreement dated as of June 30, 2005, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
dated as of May 14, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on June 30, 2005).

Employment Agreement effective as of August 1, 2005 between the Company and Mark Alvarez
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August
4,2005).
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10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

23.1%
31.1%
31.2%
32.1%*
32.2%

Long-Term Performance Bonus Plan including the forms of award agreement and restricted stock
agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on September 23, 2005).

Sale of Business Bonus Program including the form of award agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 23, 2005).

Adjustments to Compensation for Named Executive Officers Effective April 1, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 13, 2006).
Director Compensation as Adjusted Effective March 8, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 13, 2006).

Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 of the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004)

Consent of KPMG LLP

Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

3(b)

1.

10.

11.

*Filed herewith.
Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements.

Stock Option Plan and First Amendment to Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed
with the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8, File No. 33-85668).

Second Amendment to Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed with the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-8, File No. 33-85668).

Form of Third Amendment to Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 filed with the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 1994).

Form of Fourth Amendment to the Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.59 filed with
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 1995).

Form of Fifth Amendment to Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 filed with the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 1996).

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, File No. 33-85668).

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3, filed with the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8, File No. 33-85668).

Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into between the Company and certain of its officers and directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 filed with the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1,
File No. 33-83474).

1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(A) to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-8, (File No. 333-117736).

Form of Employment Agreement with the executive officers of the Company (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 filed with the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30,
2002).

Form of Incentive Stock Option pursuant to 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2004).
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option pursuant to 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2004).

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (For Directors) pursuant to 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ending September 30, 2004)

Employment Agreement entered into on October 27, 2004 by and between the Company and Barbara J.
Osborne (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form §-K
dated October 27, 2004).

Summary of base salary adjustments for named executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15
of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Summary of compensation arrangements with directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Separation Agreement and Full Release of All Claims between the Company and Barbara J. Osborne
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended March 31, 2005).

Annual Executive Performance Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 19, 2005).

Ninth Amendment Agreement dated as of June 30, 2005, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
dated as of May 14, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on June 30, 2005).

Employment Agreement effective as of August 1, 2005 between the Company and Mark Alvarez
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 4,
20095).

Long-Term Performance Bonus Plan including the forms of award agreement and restricted stock agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September
23,2005).

Sale of Business Bonus Program including the form of award agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 23, 2005).

Adjustments to Compensation for Named Executive Officers Effective April 1, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 13, 2006).

Director Compensation as Adjusted Effective March 8, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 13, 2006).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on March 16,
2006.

MICROTEK MEDICAL HOLDINGS, INC.

By: s/DanR.[Lee

Dan R. Lee, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities indicated on March 16, 2006.

SIGNATURE TITLE
s/Dan R. Lee Chairman of the Board of Directors, President, Chief
Dan R. Lee Executive Officer and Director

(principal executive officer)

s/Roger G. Wilson Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer (principal
Roger G. Wilson financial and accounting officer)
s/Kenneth F. Davis Director

Kenneth F. Davis

s/Michael E. Glasscock, ITT Director
Michael E. Glasscock, I1I

s/Rosdon Hendrix Director
Rosdon Hendrix

s/Gene R. McGrevin Director
Gene R. McGrevin

s/Marc R. Sarni Director

Marc R. Sarni

s/Ronald L. Smorada Director

Ronald L. Smorada
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and for Each of the Three Years in

the Period Ended December 31, 2005
and Reports of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Microtek Medical Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Microtek Medical Holdings, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income, changes in sharecholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005. In connection with our audits of the
consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedule listed in the
Index at Item 15 on Form 10-K. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Microtek Medical Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated
March 8, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective
operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

Jackson, Mississippi KPMG LLP
March 8, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Microtek Medical Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, contained in Item 9A of the Form 10-K, that Microtek
Medical Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that Microtek Medical Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2003, is fairly stated, in
all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). Also, in our opinion,
Microtek Medical Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
contro] over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COS0).




We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Microtek Medical Holdings, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2005, and our report dated March &, 2006 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

Jackson, Mississippi KPMG LLP
March 8, 2006
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MICROTEK MEDICAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004, AND 2003

In thousands, except per share data 2005 2004 2003
NET SALES $ 134458 S 126,581 98,664
COST OF GOODS SOLD 81,932 77017 59448
Gross profit 52,526 49.564 39216
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Selling, general and administrative 40,526 39483 31,261
Amortization of intangibles 961 809 440
Research and development 810 1,048 940
Total operating expenses 42297 41,340 32,641
Gain (loss) on dispositions (139) 215 982
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 10,090 8,439 7.557
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest income 189 57 84
Interest expense (227) (322) (263)
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) (408) 850 -
Equity in earnings of investee 202 128 85
Other income, net 5 50
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX PROVISION 9,846 9.157 7513
INCOME TAX BENEFIT (4.658) (764) (8,510)
NET INCOME $ 14,504 $ 9921 16,023
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Unrealized gain on available for sale securities, net of
income taxes of (37), ($15) and $20, respectively 12 25 71
Foreign currency translation gain (loss). net of income taxes
of $144, (881) and ($112), respectively (1,536) 497 201
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 12,980 $ 10.443 16,295
NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE - Basic S 0.33 $ 0.23 0.38
NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE - Diluted $ 0.33 $ 0.22 0.37
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
Basic 43,347 43,005 42,206
Diluted 44050 44 500 43251

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MICROTEK MEDICAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

In thousands

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Amortization of intangibles

Deferred income taxes

Provision for doubtful accounts

Loss (gain) on dispositions

Equity in earnings of investee

Other

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of

acquisitions and disposed businesses:

Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation
Other accrued liabilities
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of and deposits for property and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment
Acquisition of International Medical Products, B.V.
Acquisition of OrthoPlast
Acquisition of Plasco
Acquisition of Gyrus ENT

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under line of credit agreement
Repayments under line of credit agreement
Repayment of notes payable
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Repurchase of treasury stock
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Bank overdraft

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

(continued)

2005 2004 2003

S 14,504 $ 9921 16,023
2,182 2,206 2261
961 809 440
(5.256) (1,690) (8,810}
893 714 763
139 (215) (982)
(202) (128) (85)
(81) 8 14
(1,284) (2.985) (541)
1463 2,084 (7.161)
(1,797) (783) 128
(1,908) 179 625
(515) 451 565
418) 1,624 42
1021 (55 (36)
9,702 12,140 3246
(1,112) (2.068) 2.725)
215 600 400

- (9.628) -

- (419) -
- - (2,546)
- - (150
(897) (11,515) (5.021)
112,042 104,551 91,299
(115,361) (107,182) (91,254)
491) (463) (298)
706 686 492
(147) - (746)
410 970 729
93 797 879
(2,748) (641) 1,101




MICROTEK MEDICAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

In thousands 2005 2004 2003

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH (256) (482) 313
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,801 (498) (361)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Beginning of year 8,964 9,462 9,823

End of year $ 14,765 $ 8.964 $ 9,462
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest $ 257 3 315 S 289
Income taxes S 543 $ 482 $ 252

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH

INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES -

Note receivable from sale of product line (Note 6) $ - $ - 3 903

Note receivable from sale of inventories (Note 7) 3 3 1,051 3 -

Equipment acquired under capital lease $ - g 45 $ 529

Note payable for acquired business (Note 10) $ - $ - $ 866

Tax benefits related to stock options (Note 12) $ 1,474 $ - $ -

Common stock issued pursuant to patent issuance (Note 4) $ - $ $ 888

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MICROTEK MEDICAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004 AND FOR EACH OF THE
THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

1.

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Microtek Medical Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) manufacture and supply
innovative product solutions for patient care, occupational safety and management of infectious and
hazardous waste primarily for the healthcare market, which represents one business segment. The
Company markets its products to hospitals and other end users through a broad distribution system
consisting of multiple channels including distributors, directly through its own sales force, original
equipment manufacturers, and private label customers. The Company also markets certain of its
products through custom procedure tray companies.

The Company’s revenues are generated through two operating units, Microtek Medical, Inc.
(“Microtek™), a subsidiary of the Company, and OREX Technologies International (“OTI”), an
operating division. Microtek is the core business of the Company. Since 2002, OTI has focused on
commercializing its OREX patented technology in the nuclear industry. As described in Note 5 to
these consolidated financial statements, in September 2004, the Company entered into an agreement
which grants to Eastern Technologies, Inc. a worldwide exclusive license to manufacture, use and
sell the Company’s OREX degradable products and processing technology in the nuclear industry,
homeland security industry and for certain other industrial applications. Subject to the terms and
conditions of this licensing agreement, OTI no longer selis OREX products to the nuclear power
industry. OTI revenues to the nuclear industry amounted to approximately three percent of the
Company’s consolidated net revenues in 2005 and approximately six percent in both 2004 and 2003.

Consolidation Policy - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company
and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

Revenue Recognition - Revenues from the sale of the Company’s products are recognized at the time
of shipment when persuasive evidence of a sale arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the price
is fixed and collectibility of the associated receivable is reasonably assured. The Company does not
grant its distributors or other customers price protection rights or rights to return products bought,
other than normal and customary rights of return for defects in materials or workmanship. The
Company is not obligated to accept product returns for any other reason. Actual returns have not
historically been significant.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents are composed of short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts Receivable — Accounts receivable are stated at the amount the Company expects to collect
and are presented net of allowances of $1,635,000 and $1,025,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Management’s estimate of uncollectible accounts is based on a number of factors,
including customer credit-worthiness, past transaction history with the customer, current economic
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industry trends, and changes in customer payment terms. If a material deterioration in any of these
factors were to occur, the Company’s estimate of its allowance for doubtful accounts would change.

Inventories - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The first-in first-out (“FIFO”)
valuation method is used to determine the cost of inventories. Cost includes material, labor and
manufacturing overhead for manufactured and assembled goods and materials only for goods
purchased for resale. On a periodic basis, management reviews its inventory quantities on hand for
obsolescence, physical deterioration, changes in price levels and the existence of quantities on hand
which may not reasonably be expected to be used or sold within the normal operating cycles of the
Company's operations. To the extent that any of these conditions are believed to exist or the utility
of the inventory quantities in the ordinary course of business is no longer as great as their carrying
value, the carrying value of the inventory is adjusted. To the extent that this adjustment is made
during an accounting period, an expense is recorded in the Company's statement of operations,
generally in cost of goods sold. Significant management judgment is required in determining the
amount of such an adjustment. In the event that actual results differ from management's estimates or
these estimates and judgments are revised in future periods, the Company may need to record
additional adjustments to the carrying value of its inventory which could materially impact the
Company's financial position and results of operation.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation on property and
equipment is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related
assets. Property and equipment held under capital leases and leasehold improvements are amortized
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life of the asset,
whichever is shorter. At December 31, 2005, the Company had property and equipment with the
following estimated lives:

Property and Equipment Estimated Life
Building and leasehold improvements 3 to 20 years
Equipment 3 to 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 310 5 years
Other 3 to 7 years

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets - Goodwill represents the excess of costs over fair value of
assets of businesses acquired. The Company has adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets which requires that
goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a purchase business combination and determined to have
an indefinite useful life are not amortized. Instead, they are evaluated for impairment at least
annually in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142. The Company has chosen June 30" as its
annual impairment test date. The Company’s transitional impairment test performed on January 1,
2002 and the impairment tests performed through June 30, 2005 have indicated that no impairment
loss was necessary.

SFAS 142 also requires that intangible assets with estimable useful lives be amortized over their
respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values and be reviewed for impairment
in accordance with SFAS 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. The
Company’s identifiable intangible assets consist primarily of customer lists and patent and license
agreements and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Intangible Assets Estimated Useful Life
Customer lists 5 years to 15 years
Covenants not to compete 5 years to 15 years
Patent and license agreements 13 years to 17 years
Other intangibles 4 years to 15 years
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The Company’s goodwill and intangible assets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 are summarized
as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Goodwill $ 30,956 $ - $ 31,737 $ -

Customer lists 3,120 719 3464 454
Covenants not to compete 1,148 744 1,180 519
Patent and license agreements 5,293 2,701 5,114 2,391
Other 1.043 399 1097 277
$ 41,560 $ 4,563 g 42,592 $ 3,641

Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $961,000, $809,000 and $440,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. Following is the estimated annual
amortization expense for each of the five years subsequent to December 31, 2005 (in thousands):

Amortization Expense

2006 $ 810
2007 784
2008 633
2009 477
2010 444

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - In accordance with SFAS 144, the Company’s long-lived assets,
such as property and equipment and purchased intangibles subject to amortization, are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these
assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected
to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash
flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets held for disposal, if any, are presented separately and are
reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value, less estimated cost to sell such assets, and
are no longer depreciated.

Investment in Available for Sale Securities - The Company holds approximately a 2.5 percent
interest in Consolidated Ecoprogress Technology, Inc., a Canadian technology marketing company
trading on the Vancouver Securities Exchange. These investments are classified in accordance with
SFAS 115 as available for sale securities and are stated at market.

Distribution Expenses - Distribution expenses incurred by the Company include third party freight
costs as well as other internal costs such as salaries, depreciation, rent, insurance, utilities, repairs
and maintenance, and supplies associated with the Company’s distribution activities. Distribution
costs of approximately $10,335,000, $9,408,000 and $7,038,000 for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Research and Development Costs - Research and development costs include product research as
well as various product and process development activities and are charged to expense as incurred.
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Income Taxes - Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Valuation allowances are
established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized
(Note 12).

Foreign Currency - The financial position and results of operations of the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and the Netherlands are measured using the foreign subsidiary’s
local currency as the functional currency. Revenues and expenses of such subsidiaries have been
translated into U.S. dollars at average exchange rates prevailing during the period. Assets and
liabilities have been transiated at the rates of exchange on the balance sheet date. The resulting
translation gain and loss adjustments are recorded directly as a separate component of shareholders’
equity. Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of applicable taxes, resulted in losses of
$1,536,000 in 2005 and gains of $497,000 and $201,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Transaction gains and losses that arise from exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency are included in the results of operations as incurred.
Foreign currency exchange losses included in operations for the year ended December 31, 2005
were $408,000. Foreign currency exchange gains included in operations for the year ended
December 31, 2004 were $850,000. These foreign currency exchange losses and gains resulted
from the translation of certain transactions of the Company’s Netherlands subsidiaries which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of those subsidiaries. The effect of
foreign currency transactions was not material to the Company’s results of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2003.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans - At December 31, 2005, the Company has three stock-based
employee compensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 14. The Company accounts
for its stock-based employee compensation plans under the recognition and measurement principles
of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations
including FASB Interpretation No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock
Compensation, an interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25, issued in March 2000. No stock-based
employee compensation cost is reflected in net income for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003, as all options granted under the Company’s stock option plans had an exercise price
equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of the grant. SFAS 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, established accounting and disclosure requirements
using a fair-value-based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation plans. As
allowed by SFAS 123, the Company has elected to continue to apply the intrinsic-value-based
method of accounting described above, and has adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS 148,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 123. The following table illustrates the effect on net income as if the fair-value-based
method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested awards in each period (in thousands,
except per share data). i
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2005 2004 2003
Net income, as reported $ 14504 3 9921 $ 16,023
Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined under
fair-value-based method for all awards,

net of related tax effects (2.061) (1.583) (135D
Pro forma net income S 12443 $ 8,338 $§ 14672
Net income per share:
Basic — as reported $ 0.33 ) 0.23 $ 0.38
Basic - pro forma $ 0.29 $ 0.19 $ 0.35
Net income per share:
Diluted — as reported $ 033 $ 022 3 0.37
Diluted — pro forma $_ 028 $ 019 § 0.34

On December 20, 2005, the Company accelerated the vesting of all unvested stock options
previously awarded to the Company’s employees. The primary purpose of the accelerated vesting
was to eliminate future compensation expense the Company would otherwise recognize in its
consolidated statement of operations with respect to these options upon the adoption of SFAS
123(R) on January 1, 2006. As a result of this action, options to purchase approximately 950,000
shares of the Company’s common stock at exercise prices ranging from $1.90 to $4.72 per share and
having a weighted average exercise price of $3.96 per share became exercisable immediately.
Included in the 2005 pro forma amounts above is stock-based employee compensation of
$1,600,000 resulting from this action. The exercise prices and number of shares subject to the
accelerated options were unchanged.

The pro forma information presented above was determined using the Black Scholes option pricing
model and weighted average assumptions which are presented in Note 14.

Earnings Per Share - Earnings per share is calculated in accordance SFAS 128, Earnings Per Share,
which requires dual presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share on the face of the income
statement for all entities with complex capital structures. Basic per share income is computed using
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted per share
income is computed including the dilutive effect of contingently issuable shares. Dilutive potential
common shares are calculated in accordance with the treasury stock method, which assumes that
proceeds from the exercise of all options are used to repurchase common shares at market value.
The number of shares remaining after the exercise proceeds are exhausted represents the potentially
dilutive effect of the options. The following table reflects the weighted average number of shares
used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share for the periods presented (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003
Basic Shares 43,347 43,005 42,206
Dilutive Shares (due to stock options) 703 1495 1,045
Diluted Shares 44 050 44.500 43251

Options to purchase 1,154,000, 796,000 and 503,000 shares were outstanding at December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted net income per
share because the exercise price of the options was greater than the average market price of the
common shares, and therefore, the effect would be antidilutive.




Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - The Company accounts for derivative and hedging
activities in accordance with SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities. Under SFAS 133, derivative instruments are recognized in the balance sheet at fair value
and changes in the fair value of such instruments are recognized currently in earnings unless specific
hedge accounting criteria are met. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had no derivative
Imstruments.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The carrying amount of the Company’s cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, other receivables, prepaid expenses and other assets, accounts
payable, and accrued expenses approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these
instruments. The carrying value of the Company’s long-term debt also approximates fair value
based on interest rates that are believed to be available to the Company for debt with similar
prepayment provisions provided for in the existing debt agreements.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards - In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation
of ARB No. 51. In December 2003, the FASB published a revision to Interpretation No. 46 (46R) to
clarify some of the provisions of the original Interpretation. This Interpretation addresses the
consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities as defined in the Interpretation.
Under the new guidance, special effective date provisions apply to enterprises that have fully or
partially applied Interpretation 46 prior to issuance of this revised Interpretation. Otherwise,
application of Interpretation 46R is required in financial statements of public entities that have
interests in structures that are commonly referred to as special-purpose entities for periods ending
after December 15, 2003. Application by public entities, other than small business issuers, for all
other types of variable interest entities is required in financial statements for periods ending after
March 15, 2004. The adoption of the provisions of this Interpretation for 2003, 2004 and 2005 had
no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4.” SFAS No. 151 clarifies that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight,
handling costs and wasted materials (spoilage) should be recognized as current period charges in all
circumstances. In addition, SFAS No. 151 requires that allocation of fixed production overhead to
inventory be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for
inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of SFAS No. 151 will have on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” which revised
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. SFAS No. 123(R) establishes
accounting requirements for share-based compensation to employees and carries forward prior
guidance on accounting for awards to non-employees. Specifically, SFAS No. 123(R) requires that
public companies recognize compensation expense in an amount equal to the fair value of the share-
based payments. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective with respect to the Company beginning with the first
guarter of 2006. SFAS No. 123(R) permits companies to adopt its requirements using either the
“modified prospective” method or the “modified retrospective” method. The Company is still
evaluating which transition method to utilize. As permitted by SFAS No. 123, the Company
currently accounts for share-based payments to employees using Accounting Principles Board
(“APB”) Opinion No. 25’s intrinsic value method and, as such, recognizes no compensation expense
for employee stock options. The Company’s initial adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)’s fair value
method on January 1, 2006 is not expected to have an impact on the Company’s results of operations
or overall financial position. However, the future impact of the Company’s adoption of SFAS No.
123(R) on its results of operations cannot be predicted at this time because it wili depend on levels of
share-based payments granted in the future. However, had we adopted SFAS No. 123(R) in prior
periods, the impact of that standard would have approximated the impact of SFAS No. 123 as
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described in the disclosure of pro forma net income and diluted net income per share elsewhere in
Note 1 to these consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003. SFAS No. 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized
compensation expense to be reported as a financing cash flow activity, rather than as an operating
cash flow activity as required under current literature. This requirement will reduce net operating
cash flows and increase net financing cash flows in periods after adoption. The Company cannot
estimate what those amounts will be in the future because they depend or, among other things, when
employees exercise stock options.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets, an
amendment of APB Opinion No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions. SFAS No. 153
amends the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be measured based on the fair
value of the assets exchanged and more broadly provides for exceptions regarding exchanges of
nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. SFAS No. 153 is effective for
nonmonetary assets exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The
Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 153 in the third quarter of 2005 did not have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2005, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations (“FIN 477). FIN 47 clarifies that a conditional asset retirement obligation, as used in
SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, refers to a legal obligation to perform
an asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of the settlement are conditional on a
future event that may not be within the control of the entity. Accordingly, an entity is required to
recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair value can
be reasonably estimated. FIN 47 is effective no later than fiscal years ending after December 15,
2005. The adoption of FIN 47 in 2005 had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2004 and 2003 consolidated
financial statements to conform to the classifications used in 2005.

ACQUISITIONS

Each of the following described acquisitions was accounted for as a business combination in
accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. Accordingly, the results of operations
related to the acquired assets have been included in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements from their respective acquisition date.

Effective November 1, 2003, Microtek acquired substantially all of the assets of Plasco, Inc.
(“Plasco”), a manufacturer and marketer of multi-line disposable medical device products. The
purchase price of approximately $3.4 million was allocated to the assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed, based on their respective estimated fair values, as follows (in thousands):

F-15




Purchase price paid as:

Cash $ 2,569
Note payable (note 10) 866
Total purchase consideration 3,435
Allocated to:
Accounts receivable $ 1,036
Inventories 2,050
Other current assets 111
Property and equipment 795
Identifiable intangible assets 187
Accounts payable (730)
Other liabilities (34)
Total allocation - $ 3435

Identifiable intangibles associated with the Plasco acquisition have an average useful life of five
years and include covenants not to compete of approximately $62,000 and customer lists of
approximately $125,000. The acquisition of Plasco on November 1, 2003, did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations in 2003.

Effective March 1, 2004, Microtek acquired substantially all of the assets of Ortho/Plast, Inc.
(“OrthoPlast”), a marketer of a small line of orthopedic products. The purchase price of
approximately $419,000 in cash, including certain acquisition costs, was allocated to accounts
receivable, inventories, property and equipment and identifiable intangibles (principally customer
lists of approximately $200,000 with a useful life of five years) based on those assets’ respective
estimated fair values, with the excess allocated to goodwill. The amount allocated to goodwill was
not significant. The terms of the related purchase agreement also provide for additional cash
consideration up to $600,000 if future revenues from the Company’s orthopedic product line exceed
certain targeted levels, as defined in the agreement, through 2009. The additional consideration will
be recorded when it is determinable that such target revenues are probable of being met and is
expected to result in additional goodwill. The acquisition of OrthoPlast on March 1, 2004, did not
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations in 2005 or 2004.

Effective May 28, 2004, Microtek acquired selected fixed assets and inventories related to certain
businesses of International Medical Products, B.V. and affiliates (collectively, “IMP”) from Cardinal
Health for approximately $9.6 million in cash, including acquisition costs, and an accrued liability
for certain employee costs of 400,000 EURO, or approximately $491,000. The purchase price was
allocated to the assets acquired and liability assumed, based on their respective estimated fair values,
as follows:

Purchase price paid as:

Cash $ 9,628
Accrued employee liability 491
Total purchase consideration 10,119
Allocated to:
Inventories $ 1816
Property and equipment 186
Identifiable intangible assets 2.883
Total allocation 4,885
Goodwill $ 5234
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Identifiable intangible assets included customer lists of approximately $2.3 million (useful life of 15
years), non-compete agreements of approximately $219,000 (useful life of five years) and other
intangible assets of approximately $362,000 (useful life of four years).

The following unaudited pro forma financial information for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, reflects the Company’s results of operations as if the IMP acquisition had been completed on
January 1, 2003 (in thousands, except per share data):

2004 2003
Net revenues $ 132255 $ 111,004
Net income $ 10,663 $ 17,639
Net income per share — basic $ 0.25 $ 0.42
Net income per share — diluted $ 024 $ 041

The pro forma financial information is based on estimates and assumptions which management
believes are reasonable. However, the pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of the
operating results that would have occurred had the IMP acquisition been consummated as of the date
indicated, nor are they necessarily indicative of future operating results.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENTS

In conjunction with its acquisition of Deka Medical, Inc. in 2001, Microtek entered into deferred
compensation arrangements with certain of Deka’s key employees to gain their assistance with the
integration of the Microtek and Deka organizations immediately following the acquisition and their
support toward the continued success of the acquired product lines under Microtek’s management.
These arrangements provided for lump-sum payments at the end of a four-year employment period
and were automatically forfeited if employment was terminated during this period. Pursuant to the
terms of the arrangements, in September 2004, Microtek exercised its option to prepay these
obligations prior to maturity and accordingly paid a total of $874,000 to these employees in
fulfillment of its obligation under these arrangements. Total compensation expense recorded in 2004
and 2003 with respect to these arrangements was $180,000 and $245,000, respectively.

PATENT ISSUANCE

In 2001, the Company acquired the assets of MICROBasix LLC (“MICROBasix”) after developing
a cooperative alliance relationship with MICROBasix in 2000 for the purpose of sharing
technologies, products and services that provide significant volume reduction of low-level
radioactive waste for the nuclear industry. The MICROBasix purchase agreement also provided for
contingent cash payments and the issuance of additional shares of common stock upon the issuance
of a US. Patent covering the technologies, products and services providing disposal and volume
reduction of low-level radioactive waste for the nuclear industry. On September 23, 2003, U.S.
Patent No. 6,623,643 was issued covering the process for treatment of waste streams containing
water-soluble polymers, specifically in the nuclear industry. Accordingly, the Company made the
required cash payments of $200,000 and issued an additional 250,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock having a market value of approximately $900,000. These additional patent costs of
approximately $1.1 million are being amortized over the expected patent life of approximately 16
years.

LICENSE AGREEMENT

In September 2004, the Company entered into an agreement (the “License Agreement”) which
grants to Eastern Technologies, Inc. (“ETI”) a worldwide exclusive license to manufacture, use and
sell the Company’s OREX materials and processing technology in the nuclear industry, homeland
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security industry and certain other industrial applications. Under the terms of the License
Agreement, the Company will receive license royalties equal to $75,000 per quarter for the first
three years of the agreement. Thereafter and generally until the expiration of the underlying patents
related to the product or service generating the subject royalties, the Company will receive license
royalties equal to the greater of: (1) generally five percent of net sales, as defined in the agreement,
or (ii) $300,000 per year. The royalty rate is subject to downward adjustment in certain events with
respect to net sales of certain products. The Company also entered into an exclusive three-year
supply agreement (the “Supply Agreement”) under which the Company has agreed to provide
certain sourcing and supply chain management services to ETI, and ETI has agreed to purchase a
total of approximately $4.8 million of inventory over the term of the Supply Agreement. For these
services, the Company will receive management fees totaling $2.7 million, $600,000 of which was
received at the signing of the Supply Agreement. The balance of the management fees are payable
in quarterly installments of $175,000 beginning December 31, 2004 and at the end of each quarter
thereafter until September 30, 2007. The cash payment of $600,000 was recorded as deferred
revenue (included in accrued expenses, a current liability) upon receipt. This amount, together with
all future management fees collected from ETI, will be recognized into income ratably over the
term of the Supply Agreement as nuclear finished goods inventories on hand are sold to ETI. At
December 31, 2005, amounts recognized into income exceeded cash receipts from ETI by
approximately $618,000, which amount was recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet in prepaid expenses and other current assets. At December 31, 2004, cash receipts from EIT
exceeded amounts recognized into income by $221,000, which amount was recorded in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet in accrued expenses (current liability).

6. DISPOSITIONS

Concurrent with the signing of the License Agreement and the Supply Agreement described in Note
5 above, the Company also sold its interest in certain equipment having a net book value of
approximately $190,000 to ETI for $400,000. This sale resulted in a gain on disposition of
approximately $215,000.

Effective September 26, 2003, Microtek sold substantially all of its assets related to the
manufacture and sale of three of its safety products for a total consideration of approximately $1.3
million, consisting of $400,000 in cash and a note receivable for approximately $903,000, bearing
interest at seven percent. The note receivable was payable in 36 monthly installments of principal
and interest of approximately $9,000 beginning in December 2003, one payment of $103,184 on
March 15, 2004 and a final balloon payment representing all remaining principal and accrued
interest on December 15, 2006. All remaining amounts outstanding under the note receivable were
collected in full in October 2005. In conjunction with the sale, the Company recorded a gain of
approximately $982,000. The cash proceeds from the sale were used to repay outstanding
borrowings under the Company’s Credit Agreement.

7. SALE OF INVENTORIES TO A RELATED PARTY

In September 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with Global Resources, Inc. (“GRI”), a
related party as described in Note 8 below, for the sale of certain of its raw material inventories
used in the manufacture of finished goods for sale to the nuclear industry. At closing, the Company
received cash proceeds of $200,000 and a promissory note in the amount of $1.051 million. The
promissory note bears interest at five percent and is to be repaid ratably as the raw material
inventories purchased by GRI in the transaction are consumed by GRI, with payments of principal
in an amount not less than 25 percent of the original principal amount per year. The total gain on
the sale of these raw material inventories approximated $467,000. Of this total gain, approximately
$91,000, an amount commensurate with the Company’s relative ownership interest in GRI, has
been deferred and will be recognized into income as the raw material inventories purchased by GRI
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in the transaction are sold by GRI. Approximately $78.,000 of this deferred gain was recognized
into income during the year ended December 31, 2005.

INVESTMENT IN AFFILIATED COMPANY

In May 2000, the Company and certain of its affiliates and employees organized GRI. From its
manufacturing facilities located in China, GRI provides certain material sourcing and manufacturing
of various Microtek’s products where such supply arrangements are advantageous to Microtek based
on favorable pricing and other considerations. During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company paid a
total of $5.472,080, $6,643,308, and $6,576.,509, respectively, for products supplied, services
rendered and expenses incurred by GRI for the benefit of the Company.

The Company and a member of the Company’s management own 19.5 percent and 30 percent,
respectively, of GRI. Accordingly, the Company accounts for its investment in GRI under the equity
method. The Company’s investment in GRI was approximately $502,000 and $300,000 at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company recorded $202,000, $128,000 and
$85,000 of income during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, related
to this investment. Summary combined unaudited financial information of GRI as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 follows (in thousands):

2005 2004

Financial Position:
Current assets $ 6929 §$ 6,220
Property and equipment, net 2,495 1,744
Other assets 80 37

Total assets 9,504 8,001
Current liabilities 6,201 5424
Long-term debt and other liabilities 773 1,290

Total liabilities 6,974 6,714
Stockholders’ equity 2,530 1,287
Results of Operations:
Sales 17,570 12,426
Operating Income 1,340 1,161
Net income $ 1035 % 673

INVENTORIES

Inventories are summarized by major classification at December 31, 2005 and 2004 as follows (in
thousands):

2005 2004
Raw materials $ 12,381 $ 11,550
Work-in-progress 1,716 2,121
Finished goods 16,946 19,152
Total inventories $ 31,043 $ 32823

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, OREX inventories approximated $1.0 million and $3.8 million,
respectively, and consisted primarily of finished goods.
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10. LONG-TERM DEBT
The Credit Agreement

The Company maintains a credit agreement between the Company and a Bank (the “Credit
Agreement”). As amended through December 31, 2005, the Credit Agreement provides for a $23.5
million revolving credit facility, which matures on June 30, 2008. Borrowing availability under the
revolving credit facility is based on the lesser of (i) a percentage of eligible accounts receivable and
inventories or (ii) $23.5 million, less any outstanding letters of credit issued under the Credit
Agreement. Aggregate borrowing availability under the revolving facility at December 31, 2005
was $15.4 million. Revolving credit borrowings bear interest at a floating rate approximating the
Bank’s prime rate plus an interest margin (7.5 percent at December 31, 2005). There were $1.2
million and $4.5 million of borrowings at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Borrowings
under the Credit Agreement are collateralized by the Company’s accounts receivable, inventories,
equipment, the Company’s stock of its subsidiaries and certain of the Company’s plants and offices.

The Credit Agreement contains certain restrictive covenants, including the maintenance of certain
financial ratios, earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) and net
worth, and places limitations on acquisitions, dispositions, capital expenditures and additional
indebtedness. In addition, the Company is not permitted to pay any dividends. At December 31,
2005 and 2004, the Company was in compliance with all of its financial covenants under the Credit
Agreement.

The Credit Agreement provides for the issuance of up to $1.0 million in letters of credit. There were
no outstanding letters of credit at December 31, 2005 and 2004. The Credit Agreement also
provides for a fee of 0.375 percent per annum on the unused commitment, an annual collateral
monitoring fee of $35,000 and an outstanding letter of credit fee of 2.0 percent per annum.

Other Long-Term Debt

The Company is obligated under certain long-term lease arrangements and notes payable which
aggregated $145,000 and $343,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In addition, in conjunction with the November 2003 Plasco acquisition described in Note 2 above,
the Company signed a Promissory Note in the original principal amount of $1.1 million. This
principal amount was reduced in December 2003 to $866,000 as a result of adjustments made to the
original purchase price. The note payable, as adjusted, bears interest at six percent, is payable in
quarterly installments of principal and interest beginning in March 2004 through October 2006, and
amounted to $293,000 and $586,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. This note
payable arrangement is subordinated to the Credit Agreement.

Future minimum lease payments and the aggregate maturities of the Company’s notes payable as of
December 31, 2003, are as follows (in thousands}:

Capital leases Notes payable

2006 $ 130 $ 293
2007 15 -
2008 4 -

Total minimum payments $ 149 $ 293
Amount representing interest )
Obligations under capital lease 145
Obligations due within one year 127
Long-term obligations under

capital lease $ 18
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11. OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases office, manufacturing and warehouse space and equipment under operating
lease agreements expiring through 2016. Rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the term of the respective leases and totaled $3.0 million, $2.8 million and $2.4 million in 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. At December 31, 2005, minimum future rental payments under these
operating leases are as follows (in thousands):

2006 $§ 2413
2007 2,341
2008 2,041
2009 1,897
2010 1,843
Thereafter 6.460

Total minimum payments $ 16995

The Company may, at its option, extend certain of its office, manufacturing and warehouse space
lease terms through various dates.

12. INCOME TAXES

The income tax provision is summarized as follows (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003
Current:
Federal $ 105 % 166 $ -
State 136 218 296
Foreign 357 542 4
598 926 300
Deferred:
Federal 2,599 5,810 2,354
State 65 50 1416
Foreign 161 336 -
2,825 6,196 3,770
Valuation allowance (9,55%) (7,886) (12,580)
Tax benefits resulting from allocating
employee stock option tax benefits to
additional paid-in-capital 1474 - -
Total income tax benefit $ 4658 $ (764 $ (B510)

During 2005, the Company recognized $1.474,000 in income tax benefits associated with the
exercise of employee stock options. The benefits recognized related to compensation expense
deductions generated from 1997 to 2005 and were recorded in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements as additional paid-in-capital.

The income tax provision allocated to continuing operations using the Federal statutory tax rate
differs from the actual income tax benefit as follows ($ amounts in thousands):
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2005 2004 2003

Federal statutory rate $ 3,348 34 % $ 3,113 34 % $ 2,554 34 %
State taxes, net of Federal

benefit 154 2 177 2 (101) (D)
{tems not deductible for

income tax purposes 112 1 112 1 69 1
Expiration of loss and other

credit carryforwards - - 3971 43 1,865 25
Taxes on foreign income

which differ from

Federal statutory rate 37 - (231) (2) - -
Other, net (154) 2) (20) - (317) 4)
Valuation allowance (8,081) (82) (7,886) (86) (12,580)  (168)

Total $ (4658 A% $§ (764) (8) % S (8,510) (113) %

During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company decreased its valuation allowance by $9.6 million, $7.9
million and $12.6 million, respectively, to $4.9 million, $14.4 million and $22.3 million,
respectively. In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is
more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The
ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible and the net operating
loss carryforwards can be utilized. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes. Deferred income taxes as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

2005 2004
Deferred income tax assets:

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 619 $ 360
Inventories 804 1,438
Accrued expenses 315 125
Property and equipment 901 776
Tax credit carryforwards 754 656
Operating loss carryforwards 26,873 28,732
Capital loss carryforwards 1,293 1,293
Other 330 355
Gross deferred income tax assets 31,889 33,735
Less: Valuation allowance (4,872) (14,427)
Net deferred income tax assets 27,017 19,308

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Intangible assets 3,596 2,716
Cumulative translation adjustment 49 192
Other 553 448
Gross deferred income tax liabilities 4,198 3,356
Net deferred income tax assets $ 22819 $ 15952
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14.

Amounts included in:
Deferred income taxes — current $ 3,007 $ 1,990
Deferred income taxes — non-current 19,812 13,962

$ 22819 $ 15952

A provision has not been made at December 31, 2005 for U.S. or additional foreign withholding
taxes on approximately $2.6 million of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries because it is
the present intention of management to reinvest the undistributed earnings indefinitely in foreign
operations. Generally, such earnings become subject to U.S. tax upon the remittance of dividends
and under certain other circumstances. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of deferred tax
liability on such undistributed earnings.

At December 31, 2005, the Company had Federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of
$69.2 million and $83.7 million, respectively. These operating loss carryforwards expire on various
dates beginning in 2012 through 2020 for Federal income tax purposes and in 2007 through 2024 for
state income tax purposes.

At December 31, 2005, the Company has capital loss carryforwards of $3.8 million which expire in
2008. The Company also has tax credit carryforwards of $754,000, including Alternative Minimum
Tax credit carryforwards for tax purposes of approximately $524,000 which may be used
indefinitely to reduce regular Federal income taxes and $230,000 in other tax credit carryforwards
which expire on various dates beginning in 2006 through 2018.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is involved in routine litigation and proceedings in the ordinary course of business.
Management believes that pending litigation matters will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred Stock - On April 24, 1994, the Company authorized, for future issuance in one or more
series or classes, 10 million shares of no par value preferred stock. On December 19, 1996, the
Company allocated 500,000 of the authorized shares to a series of stock designated as Participating
Preferred Stock.

Stock Option Plans - On April 28, 1992, the Company adopted the 1992 Stock Option Plan (the
“1992 Plan”) which, as amended, authorized the issuance of up to 4.8 million shares of common
stock to certain employees, consultants and directors of the Company under incentive and/or
nonqualified options and/or alternate rights. An alternate right is defined as the right to receive an
amount of cash or shares of stock having an aggregate market value equal to the appreciation in the
market value of a stated number of shares of the Company’s common stock from the alternate right
grant date to the exercise date. Options and/or rights under the 1992 Plan were granted through
April 27, 2002 at prices not less than 100 percent of the market value at the date of grant. Options
and/or rights become exercisable based upon a vesting schedule determined by the 1992 Plan
Committee and become fully exercisable upon a change in control, as defined. Options expire not
more than ten years from the date of grant and alternate rights expire at the discretion of the 1992
Plan Committee. At December 31, 2005, currently exercisable options for 870,556 shares were
outstanding under the 1992 Plan. There were no alternate rights issued under the 1992 Plan. The
expiration of the 1992 Plan on April 27, 2002 does not affect options currently outstanding.
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In April 1995, the Company adopted a Director Stock Option Plan, which authorized the issuance of
up to 30,000 shares of common stock. The Director Stock Option Plan was terminated on March 25,
1999, and all options granted under this plan expired in 2003.

In March 1999, the Company adopted the 1999 Stock Option Plan (the “1999 Plan”), which was
approved by the shareholders on May 27, 1999. The 1999 Plan, as amended on May 19, 2004,
authorizes the issuance of up to 5.345 million shares of common stock to certain employees,
consultants and directors of the Company under incentive and/or nonqualified options, stock
appreciation rights (“SARs”) and other stock awards (collectively, “Stock Awards”). Stock Awards
under the 1999 Plan may be granted at prices not less than 100 percent of the market value at the
date of grant. Options and/or SARs become exercisable based upon a vesting schedule determined
by the 1999 Plan Committee and become fully exercisable upon a change in control, as defined.
Options expire not more than ten years from the date of grant and SARs and other stock awards
expire at the discretion of the 1999 Plan Committee. The 1999 Plan is unlimited in duration. At
December 31, 2005, currently exercisable options for 3,273,750 shares were outstanding under the
1999 Plan.

A summary of option activity during the three years ended December 31, 2005 is as follows:

Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding — December 31, 2002 3,106,342 $ 2.01
Granted 660,000 2.78
Exercised (369,214) 1.97
Canceled (162.000) 2.78
Outstanding ~ December 31, 2003 3,235,128 2.15
Granted 1,123,000 4.60
Exercised (395,000) 2.46
Canceled (65,172) 3.09
Outstanding — December 31, 2004 3,897,956 281
Granted 609,500 3.64
Exercised (247,900) 1.65
Canceled (115,250) 4.15
Outstanding — December 31, 2005 4,144 306 $ 2.96

As discussed in Note 1, on December 20, 2005, the Company accelerated the vesting of all unvested
stock options previously awarded to the Company’s employees. As a result of this action, options to
purchase approximately 950,000 shares of the Company’s cornmon stock at exercise prices ranging
from $1.90 to $4.72 per share and having a weighted average exercise price of $3.96 became
exercisable immediately. The exercise prices and number of shares subject to the accelerated
options were unchanged.

At December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, exercisable options under the Company’s stock option plans
were 4,144 306, 2,838,706 and 2,442,628, respectively, at weighted average exercise prices of
$2.96, $2.52 and $2.23, respectively. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, there were 1,518,100 and
2,019,500 shares available for future grants under the Company’s stock option plans.

The following table summarizes information pertaining to options outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2005:
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Average Weighted Weighted

Range of Remaining Average Average

Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Prices QOutstanding  Life (Years) Price Exercisable Price
$0.72 - $1.50 515,761 50 1.30 515,761 $ 130
$1.66 - $2.28 1,295.081 55 1.96 1,295,081 1.96
$2.35-$3.59 649,464 5.6 2.98 649,464 2.98
$3.63-8$3.99 833,000 84 372 833,000 372
$4.00 - $5.02 851,000 79 475 851,000 4775
4,144 306 6.5 $ 296 4144 306 $ 296

The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $2.09, $2.04 and
$1.42, respectively. These fair values and the pro forma information presented in Note 1 were
determined using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average
assumptions:

2005 2004 2003
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility 42.5% 25.6% 29.5%
Risk free interest rate 4.1% 4.0% 4.0%
Forfeiture rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected life, in years 93 9.8 9.7

Employee Stock Purchase Plan - In March 1999, the Company adopted an Employee Stock Purchase
Plan (the “1999 ESPP”) which authorizes the issuance of up to 700,000 shares of common stock.
Under the 1999 ESPP, eligible employees may contribute up to ten percent of their compensation
toward the purchase of common stock at each year-end. The employee purchase price is derived
from a formula based on fair market value of the Company’s common stock. Rights to purchase
shares under the 1999 ESPP were granted in 2005, 2004 and 2003 as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Number of shares 66,885 51,005 77,122
Date Issued January 2006  January 2005  January 2004

Pro forma compensation cost associated with the rights granted under the 1999 ESPP is estimated
based on fair market value. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, there were 182,143 and 249,028
shares available for future issuance under the 1999 ESPP.

Shareholder Rights Plan - On December 19, 1996, the Company adopted a shareholder rights plan
under which one common stock purchase right is attached to and trades with each outstanding share
of the Company’s common stock. The rights become exercisable and transferable, apart from the
common stock, ten days after a person or group, without the Company’s consent, acquires beneficial
ownership of, or the right to obtain beneficial ownership of, 15 percent or more of the Company’s
common stock or announces or commences a tender or exchange offer that could result in 15 percent
ownership. Once exercisable, each right entitles the holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a
share of Participating Preferred Stock at a price of $60.00 per one one-hundredth of a Preferred
Share, subject to adjustment to prevent dilution. The rights have no voting power and, until
exercised, no dilutive effect on net income per common share. The rights expire on December 31,
2006, and are redeemable at the discretion of the Board of Directors at $.001 per right.

If a person acquires 15 percent ownership, other than via an offer approved by the Company under
the shareholder rights plan, then each right not owned by the acquirer or related parties will entitle

F-25




15.

its holder to purchase, at the right’s exercise price, common stock or common stock equivalents
having a market value immediately prior to the triggering of the right of twice that exercise price. In
addition, after an acquirer obtains 15 percent ownership, if the Company is involved in certain
mergers, business combinations, or asset sales, each right not owned by the acquirer or related
persons will entitle its holder to purchase, at the right’s exercise price, shares of common stock of
the other party to the transaction having a market value immediately prior to the triggering of the
right of twice that exercise price.

In September 1997, the Company amended its shareholder rights plan to include a provision
whereby it may not be amended and rights may not be redeemed by the Board of Directors for a
period of one year or longer. The provision only limits the power of a new Board in those situations
where a proxy solicitation is used to evade protections afforded by the shareholder rights plan. A
replacement Board retains the ability to review and act upon competing acquisition proposals.

Stock Repurchase Program - Effective February 22, 2000 and until December 31, 2000, the Board
of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to five percent of the Company’s outstanding common
stock from time to time in open market or private transactions. During 2001, this program was
extended through November 30, 2002, to authorize the repurchase of an additional 1.0 million
shares. In 2002, the Board of Directors amended the program to authorize the repurchase of an
aggregate of two million shares through December 31, 2003. Subsequent amendments to the plan
have extended the plan through December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2005, the Company had
repurchased 1,381,514 shares for an aggregate repurchase price of $2.8 million.

SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMER AND GEOGRAPHIC CONCENTRATIONS

As is customary in the healthcare industry, the Company has historically relied to a significant
extent on a few large distributors to market and distribute its branded products. Distributor sales to
the Company’s largest two diversified distributors accounted for approximately 9.9 percent, 10.9
percent and 12.4 percent of the Company’s consolidated net revenues in 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The Company also sells its products to these two companies on a branded, private
label and contract manufacturing basis. In 2005, non-distributor related sales to these two
companies amounted 9.5 percent of the Company’s consolidated net revenues as compared to 10.1
percent and 11.4 percent in 2004 and 2003. The related accounts receivable from these customers
were $3.6 million, $3.3 million and $4.2 million at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

A significant portion of the Company’s products are manufactured at its facilities in the Dominican
Republic, Mexico and the Netherlands or at GRI’s facilities in China. Included in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are the net assets of the Company’s
manufacturing and distribution facilities located in the United Kingdom and the Dominican
Republic which total $17.4 million and $14.3 million, respectively. Additionally, at December 31,
2005 and 2004, the net assets of the Company’s manufacturing and distribution operations in the
Netherlands totaled $13.2 million and $15.0 million, respectively. Only the Company’s facilities in
the United Kingdom and the Netherlands sell products to external customers. Sales from the United
Kingdom were $8.8 million, $6.4 million and $5.6 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Sales from the Netherlands in 2005 and 2004 were $14.0 million and $7.9 million, respectively.
Total international sales by the Company were $32.8 million, $23.7 million and $13.4 million in
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company’s operations are subject to various political, economic and other risks and
uncertainties inherent in the countries in which the Company operates. Among other risks, the
Company’s operations are subject to the risks of restrictions on transfer of funds; export duties,
quotas, and embargoes; domestic and international customs and tariffs; changing taxation policies;
foreign exchange restrictions; and political conditions and governmental regulations.
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16. RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company maintains retirement plans covering employees who meet certain age and length of
service requirements, as defined. Contributions to these plans, either in shares of the Company’s
common stock or cash, depending on the plan, totaled $952,000, $502,000 and $377,000 during

2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

17. UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(in thousands, except per share data)

Quarter
Year Ended December 31, First Second Third Fourth
2005
Net sales $33,743 $34,506 $33,487 $32,722
Gross profit 13,744 13474 11,945 13,363
Net income 2,101 2,199 7,857 (1) 2,347
Income per common share —
Basic § 005 $ 005 $ 0.18(1) $ 005
Diluted $ 005 $ 005 $ 0.18(1) $ 005
2004
Net sales $29,297 $30,157 $33,984 $33,143
Gross profit 11,548 11,784 12,972 13,260
Net income 1,724 1,692 2,184 4321 (2)
Income per common share —
Basic $ 0.04 $ 004 $ 005 $ 0.10 (2)
Diluted $ 0.04 $ 0.04 $ 005 $ 0.10 (2)

(1)  Includes the effect of the Company’s net deferred income tax benefit of $6.5 million recorded in

the third quarter of 2005.

(2)  Includes the effect of the Company’s net deferred income tax benefit of $1.7 million recorded in

the fourth quarter of 2004.
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SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Description

Year Ended December 31, 2003:

Allowances for receivables

Valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets

Year Ended December 31, 2004:

Allowances for receivables

Valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets

Year Ended December 31, 2005:

Allowances for receivables

Valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets

(1) Other amounts with respect to the allowances for receivables in 2003 represent the allowance for

Balance at
Beginning
of Period

$ 1,138

$ 34893

$ 972

$ 22313

$ 1,025

$ 14427

Charged to
Expense

$ 763
$ R

$ 714
$ -
$ 893
$ -

Other (1)

$ 50

$ (12,580)

$ (7.886)

$ (9,555

Deductions (2)

$ 979)
$ ]
$ (661)
$ )
$  (283)
$ .

doubtful trade accounts receivable recorded in conjunction with the Plasco acquisition.

amounts related to the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets in 2003, 2004 and 2005 represent

the net change in the valuation allowance during the period.

(2) Deductions related to the allowances for receivables represent amounts written off during the period

less recoveries of amounts previously written off.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

s Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
:5. These statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties. Although our forward-looking statements reflect the good
h judgment of our management, these statements can only be based on facts and factors currently known by us. Consequently,
ward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, and actual results and outcomes may differ materi-
+ from results and outcomes discussed in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements in this Annual Report
lude, but are not limited to, the following: (i) our belief that a strategy of organic product line development, coupled with
itegic acquisitions, is the best way to grow our business; {ii) our belief that a renewed emphasis on top-quality research and
‘elopment and a robust slate of new product launches, together with stellar partner and customer alliances, should make
16 another record year of growth in top line results and bottom line profitability; (iii) our ability to generate cash flows from
. core business success to enable additional investments in the next generation of infection control and infection prevention
ducts as well as strategic acquisitions; (iv) our ability to leverage our unique manufacturing capabilities to capitalize on new
itract manufacturing opportunities; (v) our ability to generate expected OEM revenue growth in 2006 by strengthening quality
iems, improving service levels and enhancing customer relationships; (vi) our belief that 2006 will represent another solid year
international growth; (vii) our ability to increase our European presence and gain additional market recognition by expand-
. our direct sales force and by completing strategic acquisitions; (viii) our ability to identify ways to better compete in Europe
grow the top line and realize growth in contribution and overall profitability; (ix) our ability to continue to maintain our fow
i structure and manage the lifecycle of our product costs through process and facility rationalization and additional transfer
production offshore; (x) our ability to grow revenues, maintain our gross margin, improve our operating margins and enhance
r overall profitability; (xi) our ability to use the strength of Microtek Medical’s reputation, domestically and abroad, to expand
r presence into new growth areas; and (xii) our ability to complement our organic growth potential with strategic acquisition
portunities. In evaluating all forward-looking statements, you should specifically consider various factors that can cause actual
ults to vary from those contained in the forward-looking statements. Risks affecting the Company are identified in the risks
tors section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 filed with the Securities and Exchange
mmission and attached herein as part of this Annual Report. We do not undertake to update our forward-looking statements
reflect future events or circumstances.
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